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Thank you to all those who contributed photographs used in this 
publication including David Sawyer, Emma Hillier, Jodie Frazer, 
Claire Oxlade, Cath Hillier, David Cowell and members of the 
Competition Teams.

Club Office Bearers 2019 -2020
PATRONS
James Griffin MP, Jean Hay AM, David Hay, Des McAteer

DIRECTORS
President Christine Gibbs Stewart

Deputy President Jack Sutherland

Secretary Cath Hillier
Assistant Dannii Edwards

Treasurer Tonino Falzarano
Assistant Mark Neighbour

Club Captain Daniel Hillier
Assistant James Purvis 
Assistant Jack Watt

Chief Instructor Trae Hare-Boyd
Assistant Tracey Hare-Boyd

Competition Deb Foote
Assistant Robert Szewczak
Assistant Sarah Lally

Marketing David Cowell
Assistant Brett Edwards

Junior Activities Brian Mariotti
Assistant Hillary Burrows

Youth Jodie Frazer
Assistant Ewan Cooper-Frater

General Activities Claire Oxlade
Assistant Peter Frater

OFFICERS, PANELS AND COMMITTEES
 
Member Protection Information Officer 
Janice Faaolatane

Executive Officer 
Paul Mathew

Public Officer 
Christine Gibbs Stewart

Honourary Auditor 
Trevor Lane

Honourary Legal Advisor 
Matt Garling 

Honourary Trustees
Keith Crampton, Paul Day, Arthur McCarroll

Life Membership & Honours Panel (elected)
Shannon Job, Paul Day, Ron Morton, Arthur McCarroll

Judiciary Panel (elected)
Adam Traugott, Mark Maddox, Keith Abraham

Rules Panel (elected)
Lee Cooper, Adam Traugott, Keith Abraham, Gordon Lang, 
Frank Traugott

Future Fund Committee
Tonino Falzarano, Paul Day, Tim Platt, Bernie Burrows

Ocean Swim Committee
Bernie Burrows, Tracey Hare-Boyd

Club Historian 
Simon Fry

LIFE MEMBERS
Keith Abraham 2016
WH Allison 1922*
W Anderson 1952*
JF Buckley 1955*
BW Burrows 1996
A Carter 1936*
K Crampton 1986
FH Dargan 1930*
PA Day 1975
LA Ellison 1926*
HC ‘Rastus’ Evans 1932*
WC Farran 1921*
AF Fitzgerald MBE 1958*
S Fry 2011
R Geary 1950*
S Grose 2008
TG Harland 1965*
NW Higham 1957*
LV Hind 1920*
P Hull 1998
T Lane 2018
Col. DH Love 1919*
AJ McCarroll 1983
DJ McGrath 1948*
P Mathew 2011
OGH Merrett 1913*
RC Middleton 1922*
GA Millar 1953*
EG Morgan 1951*
GH Morgan 1941*

ED Morton 1928*
R Morton 2013
DA O’Shannassy 2001
GB O’Sullivan 2003
AH Own 1938*
CK Paton 1947*
CD Patterson 1911*
NR Purcell 1971
JB Pym 1915*
DH Richardson 1945*
DK Robinson 1957*
AV Robinson 1938*
NJB Roelvink 1996
H Rogers 1965*
EVM Shemwell 1912*
CG Soutar 1940*
GR Soutar 1943*
P St John 2009
C Stanford 2010
J Sutherland 2008
SAR Tuck 1942*
S Tocchini 1963*
RT Walden QPM 1944*
WH Walter 1921*
C Walton 1968*
JJ Waterer 1924*
GR Webb 1953*
CW Whitehead 1923*
EW Whitehead 1931*
*Deceased



North Steyne Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 113th Annual Report | Page 5

DISTINGUISHED SERVICE
1982 S Ryan, R Higgins*, B Anderson*, D Gordon*
1983 C Walton*, T Wise, CF Ashworth, M Gamlin*
1984 C Fry
1985 I Vickery*
1986 L Walker
1989 A McCarroll
1999 C Ryan, S Grose, G O’Sullivan, T Lane
2000 D O’Shannassy
2001 W Crampton, I Donald, J Fryer*
2005 HF Cranfield*, P Mathew, J Sutherland, T Howard
2007 KE Abraham, C Stanford, P St John, H Kernaghan, R Morton
2008 J Colwell, C Dooley, C Rath, M Keogh, L Cooper, T Platt, J Hay AM
2009 B Cronly
2010 M Peacock-Smith, M Neighbour
2012 R Birch
2013 D Foote, S Job
2014 G Cooper, H Matheson, J Mastrangelo, F Traugott, L Chalenor
2015 R Donaldson
2016 T Hare-Boyd
2017 D O’Brien, P Landsey, A Salier
2018 D Cowell
2019 C Stewart
*Deceased

OUTSTANDING SERVICE
2009 G Cooper
2010 S Job, D Foote, A Traugott
2011 F Traugott
2012 T Hare-Boyd, R Humphrey, J Cooper
2014 P Friedman, T Rankine
2016 D Cowell
2017 T Falzarano, R Chapman, J Purvis
2018 J Frazer, M Maddox, M Stewart, C Stewart
2019 B Parick, K Jenkins

FEES 2019-2020

Member category		  Annual fee
Active Senior			   $90
Active Reserve			   $90
Long Service			   $90
Past Active				    $90
Distinguished Service		  $45
Outstanding Service			  $45
Student				    $60
Active Junior and Cadet		  $60
General				    $90
Nipper				    $100
Family (3-4)				   $250
Family (5+)				    $310

Vale
Sincere sympathy is extended to all our members and their families who have 

suffered loss of loved ones throughout the past year

RODNEY HOWARD 
Rodney was Vice Captain of the Club for 8 years
He passed away from cancer on 26th April 2020

NEVILLE HENRY
Neville “The Owl” Henry was a local Police Prosecutor for many years 
He passed away in March 2020
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Club Achievements 2019-2020 

Our Charitable Purpose 
NSSLSC is a charitable community based service organisation. NSSLSC is located 
within the Sydney Northern Beaches branch of Surf Life Saving New South Wales and 
Surf Life Saving Australia.  

NSSLSC is established for the Objects to: 

a. study, teach, promulgate and practice the methods of surf lifesaving; 

b. minimise loss of life and injury by providing surf lifesaving patrols and equipment for the purpose 
of rescues, resuscitation and first aid; 

c. foster, promote and encourage community service and sporting competition through surf 
lifesaving; 

d. conduct carnivals, competitions and social functions for the benefit of NSSLSC; 

e. pursue and manage funds to promote these Objects including sponsorship, fundraising, 
investments and marketing opportunities;

f. promote applicable national, state, branch and NSSLSC standards, policies, procedures and 
techniques for aquatic safety and lifesaving; 

g. act at all times in the interests of its members and surf lifesaving; and 

h. carry on any activity, whether directly or indirectly, which aims to enhance the interests of its 
members and surf lifesaving. 

•	 No lives lost while on patrol for the 113th year in a row.

•	 Achieved 100% on patrol inspections during the season.

•	 Growth in member numbers for the 5th year in the row, mainly led by an increase in Nippers.

•	 Ran a very successful beach and water junior carnival with over 450 Nippers competing. 

•	 41 new bronze medallions awarded.

•	 Tracey Hare-Boyd elected President of the SLS Sydney Northern Beaches Branch, the first 
female branch president and the second president from North Steyne in its 60 year history.

•	 Highly successful Ripper Nipper’s program with 35 outstanding kids participating.  

•	 Success in Champion Life Saver and the Patrol Competition at the NSW Surf Lifesaving 
Championships with winning 1 Gold and 3 Bronze.

•	 Hosted the Australia Day Surf Boat Carnival with boats competing from across the state.

•	 Building project underway with masterplan substantially progressed.  

•	 Joe Mastrangelo awarded SLS Sydney Northern Beaches Assessor of the Year.

•	 Trae Hare-Boyd award SLS Sydney North Beaches Young Volunteer of the Year.

•	 Extended our reach far beyond our shores by hosting two Palestinians and running the 
inspirational Gaza Surf Lifesaving project which won the SLS Sydney Northern Beaches 
Community Education. program of the year. 
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President’s Forward
To say the season was extraordinary is somewhat 
of an understatement. Along with calling the 
season to an abrupt end at the end of March, 
there were storms, an infestation of seaweed and 
of course, bushfires. On the flip side and despite 
the short season, we had one of busiest seasons 
in recent memory, and not only served our local 
community but have become part of a community 
some 12,000 kilometres away. 

In our 113th season, we can proudly say that once 
again no lives were lost on North Steyne Beach. 
This is due to our exceptional training, highly 
vigilant lifesaving volunteers, teamwork with the 
Manly Council lifeguards and utmost dedication to 
the job at hand. Congratulations to our wonderful 
volunteers and contributing your time and energy 
for upholding this record.

For the fifth year in a row, our member numbers 
grew. This was mainly due to a big increase in 
our Nippers and general members. The increase 
of younger members certainly bodes well for the 
future of our Club.

Board of Directors
After 4 years with Frank Traugott at the helm, I 
took on the role as President. Frank did a terrific 
job in laying the foundations for a well functioning 
team and ensuring a strong governance structure. 
Therefore, slotting into the role was relatively 
easy, and with old hands such as Tony Falzarano 
as Treasurer, Jack Sutherland, Deputy President, 
Dan Hillier as Captain, and Jodie Frazer as Youth 
Director plus others, we have a depth of experience 
matched by none.

It was great to welcome Trae Hare-Boyd as Chief 
Instructor and Cath Hillier as Secretary both of 
whom bring a range of new skills to the Board, 
along with some terrific new Assistant Directors in 
Jack Watt, Dannii Edwards, and Sarah Lally. With 
people on the Board spanning the ages of 20-
83 years, we are lucky to have such tremendous 
diversity and a group of talented people who bring 
great ideas, energy, passion, as well as common 
sense to the running of North Steyne. 

Activities and Events
We kicked the season off with a sensational Back 
to the Beach party organised by Claire Oxlade, 
General Activities Director. With a best dressed 
patrol competition, there were some fantastic 
costumes, and we enjoyed delicious food, plenty 
of drink and an excellent band which rocked the 
hall. We had a great turnout of members and it was 
a fantastic and fun way to bring in the new season. 

Our Nippers had a great season and they 

competed strongly at 
carnivals, including at 
the NSW Junior State 
Championships with the 
biggest North Steyne 
Nipper representation 
in many years. Brian 
Mariotti, Junior Activities 
Director, and Hillary 
Burrows, Assistant Director, did a great job and 
have built a strong program.

A highlight of the season was the Nipper’s beach 
and water carnival which North Steyne hosted 
in early December. Attended by some 450 
competitors, it was an extremely well run event. 
It was particularly good to see a strong contingent 
of U8 competitors on the beach who gained some 
much needed experience which will be useful in 
years to come. 

Once again our Ripper Nipper’s program was 
highly successful. With 35 Rippers registered, each 
Sunday this great group of kids and their families 
participated in a range of skill development and fun 
activities on the beach. David Cowell, Marketing 
Director, but better known as Dave the Shark, ran 
a sensational program, and we are very proud to 
have such special kids and their families as part of 
North Steyne. 
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Competition
Our competitors, ably led 
by Deb Foote, Competition 
Director, had success yet 
again in Champion Life Saver 
and the Patrol Competition. 
Big congratulations to all as 
we won a number of medals 
at both branch and state. 

A special shout out to Joe 
Jenkins who brought home 
the state gold in U19s, as well 
as dominating his age group 
for the last four seasons. 

Our boats followed suit and had a very good season 
with five crews competing. This included having 
a team in the George Bass surf boat marathon 
which unfortunately was called off after two days 
due to the bushfires devastating the South Coast. I 
would like to acknowledge all those surf lifesaving 
clubs that played a critical role in helping their local 
communities during the bushfires – an incredible 
effort.

North Steyne also stepped in to run the Australia 
Day Surf Boat Carnival, which was another highlight 
of the season.  With boats and crews  competing 
from all over the state, it was highly successful 
with perfect weather and enough surf to make all 
the races interesting. A special moment occurred 
with the raising of the oars to mark Australia Day 
celebrations.   

The Gaza Surf Project
In January, we welcomed two men from Palestine, 
Mohammed Saleh and Hasan Alhabil, to North 
Steyne to learn about surf lifesaving in order to 
establish a Nippers program and a fully-fledged 
surf lifesaving club on Gaza Beach. Now that they 
have returned to Gaza, their priority is establishing 
a Nippers program. We are proud to have been 
part of this effort, and we look forward to supporting 

our sister club, The Gaza Beach Surf Life Saving 
Club, for many years to come. 

Once again we had a visit from a fantastic group 
of kids from Warnambool SLSC who stayed at 
our Club over the Australia Day long week and 
competed in the local carnivals. It is a pleasure to 
have a close and long standing relationship with 
Warnambool, and we look forward to their visit 
every year.

Off the beach, we helped with the Sun Run in early 
February which raised important money for our 
Club. We also raised money at the beginning of 
the season for our drought-stricken farmers and in 
the new year contributed to the bushfire relief. Our 
BBQs once again brought in much needed money 
for the Club and thank you to all who served up 
some delicious food,  particularly our wonderful 
A and A- teams. Our Clubroom was also very 
busy this season and thank you to all those who 
helped behind the bar, with Paul Mathew who kept 
everything under control. 

This season we kicked off our building project 
and hope to present a building masterplan at the 
AGM in September 2020. Thanks to all those who 
completed our survey to help shape the future of 
our club.

To all our volunteers, members, patrons and 
sponsors, thank you for your contribution. 
Despite somewhat unusual circumstances, 
our extraordinary members have made a real 
difference and worked together to deliver a full 
program of activities all while keeping people safe 
on North Steyne Beach. 

It is with pleasure that I present the 113th Annual 
Report of the North Steyne SLS for the 2019-2020 
lifesaving season.

Christine Gibbs Stewart 
President
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Deputy President’s Report
What a great season we had. Even though it was 
a shorter season, we accomplished more than we 
usually do.

I would like to thank everyone for their contribution 
as our great North Steyne team makes things 
happen. Our patrolling members did an outstanding 
job and thank you for all your dedication and 
sticking with us right up to when the season was 
interrupted unexpectedly.

Crucial to our patrols is, of course, our IRBs and 
a special thanks to Richard Donaldson for all his 
work in looking after the boats, along with all the 
training which he does.

We had some amazing events this season. This 
included the Nippers carnival and the surf boat  
carnival. Everyone pitched in and contributed to 
make these two carnivals a great success. Sarah 
Lally did a great job in organising the Nippers 
carnival, and thanks to Sarah, Claire, Damian and 
all the boaties for organising the boat carnival. 

Unfortunately, our annual ocean swim had to be 
cancelled. It was all organised when we called it off 
so a big thank you to Bernie and Tracey who put 
so much effort into this event.

We also have some fantastic young people at the 
Club and Jack Watt had a terrific season. He is 
very deserving of the Young Club Person of the 
Year award.

Thank you to Paul Mathew who gives all of his time 
behind the bar and running social gatherings. And, 
thank you to all those who help on the BBQ and 

particularly The A Teams. 

These teams are made 
up of those who are 
active reserves and life 
members. I would like 
acknowledge and thank 
the A Team made up of 
Ron, Keith, Dave, Jim 
and Ray. 

I would also like to thank the A- Team of Trevor, 
Lex, George and Rick. Being on the BBQ is a great 
way to give back to the Club and I would like to 
see more teams of this kind come together. More 
importantly, we love it so much we can’t wait to 
start BBQing again!

Many more things happened during the season 
and thank you to all who contributed. If we 
accomplished that much in such a short season, 
just think about what we can do when we are all 
together again at our beach. I look forward to 
kicking off season 2020-21.

Jack Sutherland
Deputy President
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The 2019-2020 season was a very interesting 
time to join the Board as Secretary.  I am certainly 
very grateful to have been surrounded by a very 
experienced team of volunteers as the season 
manourvered through the unsettling times of 
Covid-19. I am proud to be a part of a volunteer 
group that have the well-being and safety of their 
members as the highest priority.

It may have been a disrupted season toward the 
end but the highlights at the start and midway 
prove that I have joined at a very positive time for 
North Steyne.  Member numbers are up to over 
830.  There is a buzz around growing community 
especially with Claire Oxlade as General Activities 
Director at the helm.  I am excited that Claire brings 
new ideas and collaborations like The Snack Shack 
partnering with us for dinners at Friday Night SIPS.   
Our Life Member QandA Event unfortunatly did not 
go ahead due to the pandemic but working with 
Claire on this and digging up old North Steyne 
memories out of archives has been fascinating.  
We will continue to organise for next season  - The 
night is sure to be one to remember!

Witnessing at every board meeting, the enthusiasm 
of some of our young assistant directors was 
impressive.  For example, Trae Hare-Boyd showed 
great initiative in rolling out new processes for 
lifesavers to tick off their proficiencies. Molly our 
IRB captain utilising Facebook to hustle up teams 
of drivers for water safety at carnivals. Sarah Lally 
managing a Nippers Carnival for the first time with 
many a compliment from the wider community and 
reporting back to the Board with lessons learnt to 
aid in the success of future carnivals.  Watching the 
connection between young and older members to 
facilitate all these activities assures me that we are 
all here to learn from each other and grow.

We had twelve Board meetings this year which 
were very well attended in person at the club and 
then via Zoom online during isolation. Our focus, 
as always, is ensuring an efficiently run Club and 
that we deliver benefits to our members. 

This season also saw the introduction of our North 
Steyne Member Protection Information Officer 
(MPIO). We welcomed Janice Faaolatane, a 
current Nipper Parent, who offered to take on the 
role to guide members through any concerns or 
issues within any area of the club. Janice is the 
first point of call for any concerns or complaints 
about harassment, abuse or other inappropriate 
behaviours.

Many thanks go to Chris Stewart, our President, 
her experience and dedication to our club and its’ 

future is an inspiration, 
it was easy to step into 
the role following in her 
footsteps. 

It has also been wonderful 
to get to know Audrey 
Bruen, our North Steyne 
Administrator.  One quick 
email or phone call to Audrey for a report and click 
there it is. Thank you to Audrey for processing the 
members so quickly and efficiently for our record 
keeping and for assisting with meeting deadlines 
in the finance and administration areas.

A big thanks too to Dannii Edwards for her 
committment to the role as Assistant Secretary.  
We were just starting to feel settled into the Board 
and working on new ideas when COVID-19 hit and 
interrupted us to a dramatic halt. Hopefully what 
comes out of the forced break will be renewed 
energy levels, big ideas, strength and a fresh start 
and to build on this already mighty club.

I would also like to give credit to Murray at Sprout 
Daily for our annual report cover photo this year.
Murray is a local photographer who seems to 
always be in the right place at the right time to 
capture amazing images around our North Steyne 
Club.  This photo was aptly taken during the peak 
of COVID_19 isolation where the rainbow became 
a symbol of hope for all.

Lastly, to all club members, thank you  and we look 
forward to seeing you back at the club.

Cath Hillier 
Secretary

Secretary’s Report

Photo Credit: Sprout Daily
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Chief Instructor’s Report
Through the 2019/20 season North Steyne has 
achieved many great feats within the education 
portfolio. This season we had a 100% competency 
rate for all candidates put to assessment. The 
North Steyne education team then surged forward 
with a new initiative resulting in the completion of 
75% of the club’s proficiencies achieved prior to 
the start of the season for Bronze, ARTC, Spinal 
and IRB Driver and Crew awards. 

However, this season has been a challenge for 
all with the abrupt end to the season due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic and compulsory lockdown.  
The last Bronze group had to cease training.  
However, we can’t let this dampen the success 
had at the start and during the season. 

Proficiencies
This season North Steyne had an amazing turnout 
in proficiencies. The education team and I decided 
to tackle the challenge of proficiencies in a new and 
inventive way. By conducting multiple proficiency 
sessions before the start of the season we were 
able to get through 75% of our returning patrolling 
members before the panic or gear inspection and 
commencement of the season. 

Moving forward with technology, we did trial the 
Assessing App but unfortunately due to some 
unforeseen complications that were experienced 
not only by North Steyne but throughout the 
Branch, we had to come up with our own tracking 
and booking system.

We set proficiency dates and undertook the trial 
of a new booking system which allowed members 
to book a specific time slot to do their proficiency 
meaning that the Endorsed Delegates, Training 
Officers and Assessors had an accurate record 
of completed proficiencies and were able to plan 
logistically, in terms of gear and equipment, club 
space, personnel and water safety requirements. 
All in all, I feel this new method was a success and 
will be continually improved upon in the upcoming 
season.  

Surf Rescue Certificate (SRC)
The SRC marks the graduation of an U14 Nipper 
into cadetship and the start of their patrolling 
journey with SLSA. This season, 16 members of 
the U14’s undertook the challenge of obtaining 
their SRC in December 2019 under the guidance 
of our newly endorsed Training Officer, Jodie 
Frazer, who did an amazing job pushing these kids 
to excel in their own unique ways. 

Throughout their course these kids, and a couple 
of parents, got to learn and test their knowledge of 

the surf through many different 
teaching and assessment 
tools. 

Excitingly, the start of the 
2020/21 season will see 
the SRC award have some 
dramatic changes from 
previous years. Many thanks 
to Jodie Frazer for taking on the challenge of this 
course and congratulations on such a great result. 

Bronze Medallion
The Bronze Medallion is the principle to Surf Life 
Saving. The Bronze Medallion award is available to 
any person over the age of 15. It is the major step 
into the vast array of the Life Saving community 
and one of the best things you will ever do. 

Through this season 41 members achieved their 
Bronze Medallion. The training of these members 
was lead by head trainer Tracey Hare-Boyd with 
the support of myself and our new member and 
probationary Training Officer Hanna Clare. 

The Bronze candidates ranged from school aged 
children to Nipper Parents and of course members 
of our community. Congratulations to all those who 
have achieved their Bronze Medallion this year 
and I look forward to seeing you further your SLSA 
career as you choose to upskill and obtain other 
awards

School Programs
This year unfortunately we were unable to run 
the Redlands Surf Lifesaving program due to the 
absence of the Redlands Lifesaving Co-Ordinator  
who was on Long Service Leave. There was 
however, demand for the course due to the high 
standing that North Steyne has with Redlands. 

We decided to run  an independent bronze program 
outside of the school. This group consisted mostly 
Redlands’ students who heard from their peers 
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who currently patrol, how important lifesaving is 
in their growth and development. Congratulations 
Tracey Hare-Boyd on achieving this great result 
after training and participating in the Redlands 
program for over 10 years. 

The St. Ignatius College, Riverview, SLS program 
was also hosted again at North Steyne this 
season. This season, we ran the Riverview SRC 
and Bronze program within the school’s Term 4. 
Training took on a similar scope as the Redlands 
program with dry training taking place at the 
school and the wet components on a Saturday 
morning commencing at 7:00am!  Students also 
had the opportunity to split the Saturday morning 
session into a wet and dry session when needed.  
This allowed the students to take in as much 
information as possible in a short time frame.  All 
the students who attended the program achieved 
either their SRC or Bronze Medallion by the end of 
4th term and went straight into patrolling for North 
Steyne.  

Advanced Resuscitation Techniques 
(ARTC)
The ARTC course is an advanced course on 
the Bronze Medallion and one of the harder dry 
assessments to participate in. The award is theory 
and dry practical based and tests knowledge 
in CPR with an extended knowledge and use of 
defib, oxygen and concentrates on teamwork and 
the use of such equipment.

We were in the process of organising a combined 
club course with our neighbours, Manly and 
Queenscliff, but unfortunately due to COVID-19 
restrictions and early season end, we were not 
able to commence the training.

First Aid
First aid is the most practiced skill on the beach 
and accounts for the majority of our statistics and 
one of the most important awards a surf lifesaver 
can do. This year we continued to provide First 
Aid courses for our members along with a Cadet 

specific course along with many of our members 
completing their 3 yearly refreshers for those of us 
whose award was due to expire.

Due to the COVID-19 restrictions, many of the 
First Aid awards that were due to expire during the 
early closure of the Clubs have been extended by 
SLSA and we thank them for acknowledging the 
need for the extension giving Club members the 
opportunity to not have their qualifications lapse 
under circumstances that are beyond their control.

IRB Awards
The IRB award comes via two awards, the Silver 
Medallion IRB Driver and IRB Crew certificate. This 
year, under the guidance of Richard Donaldson, 
we have successfully put through 17 Crews and 5 
new Drivers. 

IRB is a portfolio we will be looking at more closely 
in an attempt to provide one driver for each patrol 
and take the burden off the few drivers we have 

within the Club.  In the upcoming season we would 
like to  introduce two new probationary trainers to 
share the load with our current Training Officers 
and assist in running more courses to recruit more 
Drivers and Crewman.

Silver Medallion Beach Management
The SM Beach Management course is a Branch 
facilitated course.  This season, we were lucky to 
host a Branch course at North Steyne.  Thanks 
to Tracey Hare-Boyd, Facilitator for offering to 
run the course at North Steyne enabling three of 
our members to achieve this award.  The Beach 
Management award is effectively a Patrol Captain’s 
qualification training course where participants 
learn incident management, search and rescue, 
and critical incidents including foundational 
knowledge of Policies, Procedures and some 
Legislation.

Gold Medallion
The Gold Medallion is the most advanced 
lifesaving award. Members obtaining their Gold 
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Medallion must undergo a grueling physical mission to achieve it.  Once you have obtained this award, 
Gold Medallion holders must repeat the mission as a proficiency to be able to maintain their award.  This 
season, we had one new Gold Medallion Award recipient.

Thank you
I would like to end this report by giving thanks to the many club members who gave up their time to further 
improve their surf lifesaving skills, complete their various proficiencies, upskill and undertake different 
challenges within the education portfolio.

I would like to sincerely thank the North Steyne education team for giving up countless hours of their time 
to support myself and the Club through training and assessments.  Special mention and thanks to Richard 
Donaldson, Joe Mastrangelo and Tracey Hare-Boyd. These three people have been instrumental in the 
coordination of North Steyne’s education portfolio year after year.

I would also like to congratulate Richard Donaldson on being a SLSSNB Training Officer finalist in the 
2019/20 Awards of Excellence. I would also like to congratulate Joe Mastrangelo as our Club Assessor 
of the Year and also his achievement on being named the SLSSNB 2019/20 Assessor of the Year at the 
Awards of Excellence.  We wish Joe luck as his achievements move forward to the SLSNSW Awards of 
Excellence.

Lastly, I would like to congratulate anyone who has made their first footprints in the sand, in regard to their 
surf lifesaving education awards. Any training within surf is a massive undertaking and achievement which 
you should all feel very proud of. 

Trae Hare-Boyd
Chief Instructer
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Season Awards and Statistics
SRC	
Lisa	 Anese
Ignacio	Aylwin
Zoe	 Ball
Annabel Filmer
Aidan	 Ford
Dylan	 Ford
Marley	 Howe
Lexie	 Landrak
Greer	 Mason
Lukas	 Muller
Oscar	 Odell
Mohammed Saleh
Casey	 Shea
Xavier	 Small
Josh	 Tucker
Blake	 Wilson
	  

BRONZE  
MEDALLION
Hazan	 Alhabil
Andrew	Aller
Thomas Andrews
Hunter	 Auld
Emily	 Barrelle
Oscar	 Brady
Thomas Bull
Emilia	 Cimino
Archie	 Collis
Evie	 Farrell
Emma	 Fitzgerald
Matthew Gertenbach
Daniel	 Gibbeson
Ed	 Graham
Toby	 Griffiths
Hunter	 Hartwig
Piers	 Haskard
James	 Hawley
Zara	 Howes
Kiyan	 Jahromi
Tiana	 Kasalo
Nina	 Korgul
Joseph	Langfield
Rebecca Levett
Samantha Londero
Ethan	 Lugg
William	Makim
Gonzalo Mallo Die
Chloe	 Mason
Isabella	Maybury
Simon	 Nakhla
Jessica	O’Reilly
Olivia	 Reid
Matthew Riordan
Maddi	 Schmidt
Harry Spora

Phoenix Swann
Kathryn	Tucker
Edward	Walker
Liam	 Wheen
Zach	 Wong

IRB CREW	
Joshua	Birley
Holly	 Butler
Ella	 Doughty
Ross	 Downey
Cameron Griffith
Thomas Hamer
Jack	 Herbert
Peter	 Herbert
Clare	 Housego
Pieter	 Marais
Blaise	 Miller Hill
Jodie	 O’Neill
Nicholas Perry
E. Ramsey-Stewart
Sophie	 Tetley
Zeyna	 Tinker
Roisin	 Tumilty
	

ARTC	
Zara	 Howes 
 

IRB DRIVER	
Daniel	 Hillier
Zoe	 Landrak
Sarah	 McRitchie
Freya	 O’Neill
Jack	 Watt
	
SILVER  
MEDALLION 
BEACH  
MANAGEMENT	
Benedict Armitage
Emma Hillier
Jack Watt
	

GOLD  
MEDALLION	
Benedict Armitage 

FIRST AID	
Jessica	Kremer
Pip Rees-Evans
Samantha Robinson
Alexandra Salier

BEACH ATTENDANCE:    91329

PREVENTATIVE ACTIONS:	 994

TOTAL RESCUES:		    27
No Gear (11) 
Rescue Board (8) 

IRB (8)	

TOTAL FIRST AID:		  107		
Drowning (1)
Fracture/Dislocation (2)
Major Marine Stings (3)
Major Wounds (1)
Minor Cuts/Abrasions (21)
Minor Marine Stings (74)
Spinal (1)
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Club Captain’s Report
The 2019/2020 Surf Lifesaving Season provided 
North Steyne with a totally different season to 
previous years, the global pandemic impacted 
our patrolling season significantly and required 
the ending of our season early, it hindered on 
our ability to use the club house, to train and 
compete.  I think you would agree that it has been 
a challenging and frustrating season.  However, as 
is the nature of Team North Steyne it was great 
to see the members pull together and look out for 
their community and club members, putting safety 
first.  This was both the physical safety of our 
members pre lock down, with the club on the front 
foot, closing down early to protect our members 
safety and over the lock down period focusing of 
the mental health of members with Zoom exercise 
classes or phone calls for a RUOK.  One statistic 
that I am as Club Captain proud of is that again ‘No 
Lives Lost’ protecting our community and visitors, 
either local or from around the globe.  

During the season it was once again fantastic to 
witness and be involved with our highly trained 
and dedicated lifesavers go about the business of 
patrolling our patch.  Our team is inspiring, whilst 
they worked hard on the beach, in preparing for 
patrols, patrolling and helping around the club, 
they are always being ready to go above and 
beyond the basic requirements and that is what 
makes the difference with this team. Whilst this is 
the serious side of patrolling it was also great to 
see the patrols still having fun and lightening up 
the experience. It was brilliant to observe the more 
senior members impart their expert knowledge and 
beach craft to the newer members, and it was also 
great to see the newer younger members teach 
the senior operators a few things or two as well, 
like using the new Surf App!

This season our Patrolling Team Members of 250 
patrolled a total of 6,017 cumulative hours. The total 
season hours were down by around 2000 hours 
this year over previous ones due to COVID.  Given 
this impact it is still interesting to note that there 
were still 37 members who patrolled over 40 hours 
this year. Additionally there were 33 members who 
patrolled in the 30 hours plus bracket that would 
likely have patrolled over 40 hours had not COVID 
stopped the season.  Well done all!

As always, our team provided quality and 
professional lifesaving services to all visitors 
on North Steyne beach. The success of this 
season and all previous seasons is the ongoing 
contribution of our patrolling members.  Our 
members work together in a team focused way, for 
their own patrols, and the many other patrols that 
they help volunteer or sub with over the season.  

I thank these members and 
their families who support 
and understand the value 
of the service that they 
provide. Thank you for your 
commitment to keeping our 
beach safe this season and 
in future seasons.

Throughout the season we 
conducted 27 rescues with tubes, IRB, boards 
or with no gear, which is a reduction from the 
previous year as expected given the early close 
to the season. Additionally we provided 107 first 
aids. Our Team members undertook nearly 1000 
preventative actions which is a significant decrease 
over the previous season.   Again the statistics are 
difficult to read given this years shortened season.  
However,  as we know preventing rescues before 
occur is a sign that our lifesavers are doing their 
job well.  Well done to all our PC’s driving the 
message to your patrols on prevention is better 
than rescues. 
  
This year we hosted Nippers and a Boat Carnival on 
our Beach which was a brilliant experience, again 
showing the best of our members pulling together 
to get it up and running on a truncated timeline.  
We also hosted two Palestinian Lifeguards for 
training in the SRC and Bronze Medallion for the 
Gaza Project.  Unfortunately due to the COVID-19 
outbreak we were unable to run our annual Ocean 
Swim which was disappointing for all involved, 
however we will look to run it again soon!.  

These events do not occur without the fantastic and 
ongoing support of the North Styene community 
who go above and beyond their normal patrol 
duties to help out. 
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Proficiencies
At season launch the hard work was put in and 
we again had a successful gear inspection, and 
thank you to all involved with this process, then 
the season began with the challenge of  ensuring 
we have proficiencies for all patrolling members. 
Multiple proficiencies were conducted across 
all awards. A huge thanks to Trae Hare-Boyd, 
Chief Training Officer, who organised our trainers 
and assessors for each proficiency session and 
we were able to ensure we had the bulk of the 
members proficient very early in the season. 
Thanks also to Tracey Hare-Boyd, Paul Mathew, 
Shannon Job, Keith Abraham, Joe Mastrangelo, 
James Purvis, Deb Foote, Richard Donaldson and 
our Patrol Captain’s for their hard work in ensuring 
everyone’s skills remained up to date.  

Patrols
North Steyne’s patrols are the core of what we 
do ensuring that Team North Steyne is on the 
beach protecting the public, without functioning 
and competent patrols we are not a surf club, and 
without our members we cannot patrol. 

I would publicly like to thank all our brilliant Patrols 
and PC’s who manage them, thank you all for 
your service.  In particular I would like to thank our 
PC’s Jack Watt, Jeff Brown, Mark Stewart, Ella 
Falzarano, Kyra Jenkins, Shannon Job, Dannii 
Edwards, Harry Hickey, Danny Gompes, Mark 
Burns, Paul Mathew, Tim Platt, James Purvis, 
David Cowell, Tracey Hare-Boyd and Bernie 
Burrows for their dedication to ensuring our patrols 
run smoothly. Additionally, I would like to thank 
Maxine Peacock-Smith who once again compiled 
our patrol roster.  

Our IRB section was managed by our IRB Captain 
Molly Parker and supported by Richard Donaldson. 
These members did a great job keeping on top of 
maintenance considering some of the challenges 
we faced this year and were integral in IRB 
education throughout the season.   Importantly 
they also helped ensure that we were able to 
provide drivers throughout the season when the 
shortages arose.

Last but not least, James Purvis’s & Jack Watt’s 
assistance and support as Vice-Captains was 
invaluable in ensuring the lifesaving section ran 
smoothly again.  I cannot thank both enough 
for the effort over many seasons for James and 
this season for Jack in this role. I look forward to 
working with both outstanding members in the 
future. 

Jacks Lunch
This season, inspired by a photo provided by Life Member 
Jack Sutherland, former Club Captain, 

we have revived the Sunday Patrol Lunch – “Jack’s Lunch”. 
It has been a roaring success with the lunch on Sunday 
afternoon for patrol change over.  The lunch will continue on 
so keep your eyes and ears out for a feed on Sundays.
 
North Steyne SLSC has a diverse but cohesive membership 
whose skills and knowledge are evident every patrol. Your 
commitment to safety on the beach is evident every time you 
step onto the sand, the value of your unique ability of imparting 
your deep knowledge to the next generation the requisite skills, 
ensuring beachcraft and local knowledge to our members is 
priceless.  I look forward to seeing each of you continue surf 
life saving’s proud tradition of vigilance and service at our 
community Club.

See you on the beach!
Dan Hillier
Club Captain
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IRB Captain’s Report
The 2019/2020 season was one to remember with 
many positives unfortunately brought to an early 
close by the Covid-19 pandemic. Due to this, the 
IRB section did not grow much this season, but 
there were many highlights that made the season 
one to remember. A large milestone for the North 
Steyne IRB section was the purchase of 2 new 
hulls, 1 Achilles and 1 Thundercat, that are currently 
in the production process,  as well as the purchase 
of a new engine that will ensure we have reliable 
engines on the beach every weekend. These new 
hulls will increase the reliability of our IRB section 
and decrease repair needs. I was unfortunately at 
university during gear inspection, but all engines 
and hulls were prepared for the day and therefore 
was a very successful day, with minimal changes 
required. 

This season we had a few members gain their IRB 
Drivers Silver Medallion including Dan Hillier, Jack 
Watt and Joe Purvis as well as a few members 
gain their IRB Crew certificate. This number is 
significantly lower from other seasons, but due to 
COVID-19 we were unable to complete courses 
towards the end of the season. But with the 
introduction of members being able to complete 
their crew course in conjunction with bronze 
certificates, I am expecting that next season there 
will be an increase in new crew members, which 
will hopefully in turn increase the number of new 
drivers. 

This year North Steyne hosted two major carnivals 
being the North Steyne Nipper Carnival and the 
Surfboat section of the Australia Day Carnival. 
This meant that the IRB section had to provide 
over four boats at all times as water safety 
to all nippers and surfboat rowers. We were 
required to borrow boats from Manly, South 
Curl Curl and Queenscliff to ensure that 
we had enough resources for the water as 
well as back up  hulls and engines in case 
of emergency or mechanical issues. We 
were very thankful towards these clubs 
for assisting us in successfully providing 
water safety for the entirety of the two 
carnival weekends. I would really like to 
extend my appreciation to everyone who 
assisted and put their hands up for shifts at 
the Australia Day carnival as well as branch 
and state carnivals. They were two very long 
weekends of full days and without the assistance 
from all drivers and crews to fill the long days of 
water safety, these carnivals would not have been 
so successful. 

For NSW State Champs, North Steyne were 
required to fill an IRB for a shift, and without the 

support of the surfboat rowers filling these shifts 
while competing, all competitors would have been 
pulled out of competition. This too, at the Branch 
Nipper Carnival, where we were required to fill a 
shift to ensure that our nippers could compete.  
The shift was filled quickly and I thank every 
volunteer again. Big thank you to Jack Watt and 
Trae-Hare Boyd  who responded to a boat in 
distress at Freshwater during early morning set up 
of the Nipper Carnival. Responding to Surfcom’s 
call for assistance and responding within minutes. 

This season, there was a group of members excited 
and keen to start up a IRB Racing team. They 
trained hard most weekends and kept everyone 
involved, but unfortunately due to not being able to 
find a coach and COVID-19, this season was not 
the season to start for our team, but hopefully next 
season the team will be able to race. 

I would like to extend my thank you to Richard 
Donaldson, Trae Hare-Boyd and Jack Watt. 
Without their help, engines would not have been 
fixed quickly and shifts at many carnivals would 
not have been filled. Their generosity to the club 
does not go unnoticed. 

Molly Parker – 2019/2020 IRB Captain
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Youth Director’s Report
The 2019-20 season kicked off to a great start 
with many of our Youth members completing their 
proficiencies before their first patrols on a couple 
of “brisk” Spring days. 

Our Youth numbers were slightly down on 
last season, representing 16% of total club 
membership. These figures were impacted by a 
couple of factors: less school group participants 
coming through, and the early close to the season 
which prevented the completion of a late season 
Bronze/SRC course. We would often see a few 
friends of existing Youth members buddying up 
with their friends to complete their Bronze in March 
and April, but was not to be this year.

This is now the fifth year of the cadet NOUGHTIES 
program (those born from 2000-2009) and the 
coveted “Noughties” hoody, complete with name/
nickname on the back, a firm staple in the North 
Steyne SLSC teen wardrobe. Look out for “Shark 
Bait” and “Dumped” from this year’s SRC cohort 
– there were some rather imaginative names this 
season!

This season’s SRC group was slightly smaller than 
previous years, with a mix of graduating Nippers 
from the U14 age group and some accompanying 
friends. They were thrown in the deep-end before 
the course was underway with an October long 
weekend intensive 2-day camp at North Steyne to 
complete proficiencies, encourage friendships and 
group bonding, develop pizza making skills and of 
course, learn some lifesaving skills along the way. 
A big thank you to my Assistant Youth Director, Ewan 
Cooper-Frater, past Youth Director, Jo Cooper, and 
past cadets, Rose & Frazer Richardson for your 
assistance over that the weekend and throughout 
the SRC course.

The SRC group have been very enthusiastic 
patrollers and when not on the beach, have 
volunteered on the BBQ and at club hosted events 
and carnivals and regularly assisted with Nippers 
water safety. I’m looking forward to seeing them 

progress to their Bronze 
next season.

Once again, we hosted 
the Summer School 
Holidays Youth First 
Aid Course, resulting 
in 10 new First Aid 
awards. 

A few of the course 
participants were very enthusiastic and put their 
new skills to immediate use at the North Steyne 
Boat Carnival the following weekend. And prior 
to this, Youth First Aid participants brushed up 
on their skills on the First Aid station at the North 
Steyne Nipper Carnival. A very big thank you to all 
our Youth who assisted at both of these events.

Thank you also to my other Assistant Youth 
Director, Emma Hillier for her talented film and 
production efforts with the virtual club awards 
this season. Such a fantastic effort! Hopefully you 
managed to spot her work on our social media 
pages and the club website.

Finally, thank you to all our Noughties for being 
such a lovely bunch. It’s been a pleasure to see 
your smiling faces on weekend patrols and Sunday 
training, witness Bronze completions and IRB 
Awards. Thank you also for providing your time to 
help out with water safety for club and community 
events and assisting Club and community effort as 
required. 

Looking forward to seeing everyone again in 
2020-2021. 

Jodie Frazer
Youth Director
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North Steyne Nippers had another great season! 
Carnival participation and enrolments increased 
and we saw continued strong attendance at our 
regular Sunday Nippers and Ripper Nippers 
programs. We also saw further development of our 
strong competition culture, bolstered by sustained 
attendance at our additional training sessions for 
beach races and boards. 

Competition
Attendance at competitions increased this year 
and we continued to see Nippers place and 
medal at inter-club and branch championships 
this season. We had the biggest representation at 
the Junior State Championships for a number of 
years, and the state team was thrilled to receive 
their uniforms from club legend Ron Morton.

Our U9 mixed beach relay snared 4th place and 
our nippers placed in U9 Flags (7th), Boards (6th), 
U10 Board Relay (12th). Our nippers reached 
semi-finals in U9 Boards, Flags, Sprints, U10 
Board Relay, Sprints, Swim Individual and Teams, 
U11 Boards and Cameron Relay. North Steyne 
also cleaned up at Nipper Branch Championships 
at Queenscliff with medals in the beach sprint, 
mixed beach relay, flags, 1km run and boards. 

North Steyne also hosted a very successful 
carnival with a great turnout and results for the 
home team. Well done to our competitors, officials, 
age managers and parents who helped us field 
such great teams for these events
.
Community Engagement
Nippers and their families woke early in February 
to support the Sun Herald Fun Run, a major 
fundraising activity for the Club. We hosted the 
team from Warnambool SLSC over the Australia 
Day Long weekend who generously took some 
time out from competing in the open carnival to do 

some board coaching with 
our nipper competitors. 
Our nippers were thrilled 
to have some one on one 
time with the Warrnambool 
athletes. 

Sunday Nippers
Our Sunday Nippers 
this season was a great 
success with membership 
up slightly and a great 
turnout each session – we carried on regardless 
of weather conditions; sharing the pool with 
Queenscliff and organising activities in the hall 
on the few occasions when rough surf conditions 
closed our beach. Sunday Nippers simply would 
not happen without our enthusiastic and committed 
team of Age Managers, parents and the Nippers 
management team that never failed to get the job 
done. 

Surf Rescue Certificate (SRC) 
An amazing crew of U14 Nippers and a couple of 
brave Nipper parents completed their SRC this 
season. Our newest surf lifesavers were presented 
their red and yellow uniforms and experienced their 
first patrol with Jodie Frazer and the mighty 6ers! 
A big thank you to our Chief Instructor Trae Hare- 
Boyd, Jodie Frazer and all the senior members of 
the Club, parents and other trainers who gave up 
their time to help with training and assessment for 
this course. 

I’d like to congratulate this year’s Nippers 
Chairman’s award winners, Eva Haughton and 
Charlie Colwell for their super efforts this season. 
Eva and Charlie were thrilled to receive a new 
bike each as prizes thanks to Andrew Taylor of of 
Brookvale Bikes. We farewelled our senior (U14) 
Nippers and SRC group, led by Junior Club 

Junior Activity Director’s Report
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Captains, Greer Mason and Blake Wilson and welcomed our new Junior Club Captains, Clara Brocklehurst 
and Emmet Mariotti and vice captains Sophia Nunn and Dara Kehoe.

Thank you
Thanks to our talented coaches Clayton Kearney (beach), Bec Stewart (boards) and Peta Kilgour 
(swimming). Our ever-improving carnival performances are thanks to the time and effort you have invested 
in our Nippers this season. Thanks to Bernie Burrows, Jono Colwell and the other parents for their efforts 
running the board sessions week in-week out, summer and winter.

Huge thanks to our Cadets and SRC group for your assistance this season providing water safety, coaching 
and mentoring of Nippers through a diverse range of activities. We thank all the members and parents for 
giving their time at carnivals over the season as supporters, water safety, officials and helpers. Each season 
we have the privilege of giving a big thanks to Keith Abraham, Chris Dooley, Tim Laurence and David 
Cowell who regularly officiate at Nipper carnivals, 
despite not having any Nippers themselves at North 
Steyne. Thanks for your ongoing and stalwart support 
to the future of our Club. 

Thanks to David Sawyer for his stunning photography 
throughout the season and for creating the special 
video for our presentation day; the Nippers loved 
seeing themselves on the big screen. Thanks to our 
Club President, Christine Gibbs Stewart and Board 
of Directors for your continued support and to all our 
patrolling members who provided water safety for us 
during the season.

To our sponsors, without you we could not run our 
Nippers program, so thank you. Your financial support 
provides essential equipment, clothing and funds to 
help cover our operational expenses. And finally, to my 
Junior Activities Assistant Director, Hillary Burrows. 
Thanks for everything. You have been instrumental to 
our success this season. 
 
Brian Mariotti
Junior Activities Director
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Ripper Nipper’s Report
SLSA has rolled out the Inclusive Beaches program to allow all 
Surf Life Saving Clubs around Australia the opportunity to provide a 
program that celebrates inclusion for all kids. North Steyne SLSC’s 
Ripper Nipper Program celebrates 7 seasons on our great beach 
operating alongside our main Nipper Program.

This season saw 35 extraordinary kids alongside their peers, siblings, 
families and carers on North Steyne Beach each Sunday from as 
far away as Winston Hills and Dural. As always acceptance, fun, 
inclusion, fun and learning new skills continues to be our objective. 
We continued to transition our Rippers to mainstream programs, our 
Cadets, with support and encouragement, help them to shine. 

Each week we encourage each other to try something new, develop 
new skills and awareness in the surf.

The Sydney Northern Beaches Special Needs Branch Titles in 
February 2020 was bigger and better than ever. NSSLSC was 
represented by fourteen of our Ripper Nippers also attended by 
Tracey Hare-Boyd, Acting SNB Branch President, SLS NSW CEO 
Steve Pearce and Clubs from all over Sydney, the Central Coast.  
The day was covered by the intrepid reporter Mike Dalton from 
Channel 9 News. 

We had another superb day on the beach with many bringing home multiple medals and discovering a new 
TV star with our very own Sammy Mclean making her interview debut. Our thanks to Michael Wasley, Rob 
Fry, Bryce Munro and the Mona Vale SLSC for hosting the event. 

A huge thanks goes to Jodie Frazer and Jo Cooper who are always available to step in as well as our 
Cadets who are mentors, friends and the water safety for our Rippers each week including Cerys, Finn, 
Frazer, Freya, Harry, Jack, Jodie, Peter, Rachel, Rose, Sarah and Tiana.

Our Ripper Nipper program has been provided to our phenomenal kids and their families through the 
generous support for our grants and donations including: - Balgowlah RSL, Channel 9, Manly Lions Club, 
the NSW Government – Office of Sport & Department of Social Services, SLSA Inclusive Beaches Program 
and of course, the North Steyne SLSC and the incredible members celebrate Inclusion, Acceptance and 
Diversity.

Dave The Shark
Ripper Nipper Facilitator
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Marketing Director’s Report
North Steyne SLSC continued to shine in what 
will go down as one of the most difficult seasons 
for many of our members and families who are 
part of the extended Black & Gold Family. There 
were many communities in our thoughts who were 
still enduring droughts, then devasting bushfires 
around NSW and other States shortly followed 
by floods. The season was cut short during the 
State Titles as Australia had to contend with the 
unknown of a global pandemic that continues to 
see our Surf Life Saving Club closed.

Through all of this our Club continued to do what it 
has always done as part of our local community by 
keeping our beaches safe, educating our nippers 
to be tomorrow’s volunteer Surf Life Savers, hone 
our skills through competition, education and 
training which has seen some of our members 
recognised for their efforts and initiatives. Well 
done to everyone!

In 113 years on North Steyne Beach, NSSLSC 
continues to be a leader in our local community, 
inclusive and a proud part of the broader Surf Life 
Saving movement in Australia. With every season 
that passes, our Club continues to grow and excel.

Sponsors
Channel 9 with their purchase of Fairfax are now a 
media company and broadened our reach into the 
community. They have continued to be involved in 
all aspects of the Club from our BBQ and coverage 
of events to live weather crosses during the 
season that extended the reach of our Club across 
a broader audience. It is unfortunate that due to 
the current circumstances they will not be joining 
us in season 2020-21.

Balgowlah RSL generously funds a variety of 
initiatives, programs and events across our Club 
with many of the Directors connecting with our club. 
The main Clubs Grants NSW continues to support 

our Nipper Programs, 
our Ripper Nippers and 
our Youth. The quarterly 
raffles support our Nippers 
program, allowing  the 
opportunity to purchase 
equipment and support our 
junior competition teams. 

Whilst this season’s 
Ocean Swim was postponed, the RSL continues 
to be a major financial contributor to the North 
Steyne SLSC Ocean Swim which assists in the 
sustainable financial security of our Club. With the 
shutdown of the RSL due to social distancing they 
need our help and look forward to your patronage 
as they gradually reopen.

Pure Legal, Careline Australia and Chantelle 
continue their sponsorship of our boaties with the 
new surfboat continuing to turn heads being the 
best-looking boat on the beach and our crews 
getting some great results. 

Along with the Hotel Steyne, the iconic local, 
support for the boat crews continues with the 
purchase of oars, fundraising through venue 
events and prominent place on the tent and boat. 
Manly Longboard Co continues to support our 
competition crews, decking them out in training 
and competition gear.

We thank all our sponsors for their incredible 
support and as we return for the 2020-2021 
season, we look forward to continuing our mutually 
beneficial partnership and hope to add additional 
opportunities from our broader community.

Grants & Donations
Manly Lions Club continues to support our Club 
through their generous contributions which this 
season saw them provide funding towards our 
Ripper Nipper program, the donation of two soft 
rescue boards for our nippers water safety as 
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well as providing their BBQ trailer and volunteers 
to almost match the A-Team on the BBQ at the 
Nippers Carnival in November. We continue to 
build our mutually beneficial relationship for the 
coming season.

Our building grants from the NSW Government 
Office of Sport, Northern Beaches Council 
Community Building Partnerships Grant and SLSA 
continue to see improvements across the club to 
improve safety and amenity for our membership. 
Some works will continue whilst our Club continues 
discussions with Council about the longer view for 
NSSLSC and the building.

More recently, the Club has again been successful 
through our Federal Member for Warringah, Zali 
Stegall MP with funding from the Department of 
Social Services towards Disability and a Nipper 
trailer.  Also grants have been received through 
our NSW Government and our State member for 
Manly and Patron,  James Griffin MP, from the 
NSW Office of Sport towards upskilling our internal 
training, administration and coaching abilities as 
we look to build in redundancy across the Club 
for our long-term future, and another towards our 
Ripper Nipper program paying for equipment and 
clothing.

Fundraising
Our fundraising this season was both for our Club 
and our broader Community. We continued to raise 
funds for our farmers affected by drought through 
our Rural Aid partnership moving from the Buy a 
Bale program to Buy Water Tanks. Partnering with 
Lions, who were on the ground in their local areas, 
and the Manly Lions Club fundraising to buy water 
tanks for communities affect by the fire.

Fundraising for NSSLSC this season saw almost 
90 volunteers raise just over $4,000 for this year’s 
Northern Beaches Council Sun Run in February. 
Many of our volunteers enjoyed a breakfast 
cooked by our A Team after the event. Thank you 
to everyone that was able to help.

Our Black & Gold Raffle was cut short due to 
the premature end to the season. The raffle will 
re-open at the start of the season and be drawn 
at a Club event before Christmas. Thanks again 
to our generous sponsors and supporters for the 
prizes including an Artussi Fridge by Eurolinx, a 
new bike from Brookvale Bike Factory, a nipper 
board from Bennett, vouchers from Balgowlah 
RSL, Warringah Golf Club, Diageo, Dripping Wet, 
Manly Surf Guide and Zoggs. 

Looking forward to the re-opening of our Club, 
selling some more raffle tickets and seeing you on 
the beach!

David Cowell 
Director of Marketing/ Grants Officer
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General Activities Director
It has been a busy season on the social front, 
kicking off with a well-attended and most enjoyable 
“Back to the Beach” party, albeit a little into the 
season on 9th November.  Fun and games on 
the beach and indoors for the kids followed by 
delicious paella.  Once again, the Club makes for 
an excellent party venue!

Like most not for profit and volunteer organisations, 
North Steyne relies on any sponsorship, both in 
financial as well as in kind donations.  I would 
like to acknowledge and thank our sponsors who 
assist us generously in so many ways.

We had a cracking start to the season with glorious 
weather most weekends which meant the Sunday 
BBQ was under the pump.  The annual financials 

will reflect the success of the BBQ as a major 
fundraising effort for the Club.  Via the BBQ we 
also collected donations for the ‘Bush Fire Appeal’ 
and ‘Buy a Bale’.  This season we have enjoyed 
the support and camaraderie of the newly formed 
‘A Minus Team’ who are now running the BBQ on 
the first weekend of each month.  After their hectic 

time on BBQ duty they 
move on to support the 
bar whilst sharing tales 
of the “good old days” 
at the Club.  Watch this 
space for the coming 
season as it looks like 
Jack Sutherland, head 
of the ‘A Team’ and 
our Club VP may have 
roped in a new oldies group to run another BBQ 
day, name yet to be decided.

A ‘bombora’ sandwich would not be the same 
without a great coffee and this season we have 
been fortunate to have the support of Nippers 
Mum and Club member, Uuli and her wonderful 
coffee van Uuliverse working beside us.  Uuli also 
donates a percentage of her takings to the Club, 
so a big thank you!

The BBQ would not operate without the help of so 
many Club Members and I thank you all for your 
support.  Additionally, the BBQ operated during 
both the Nippers and the Boat Carnivals with an 
amazing group of committed cooks – thank you!

For Friday SIPS this season we teamed up with 
‘Snack Shack’ who generously came to the party 
and offered club members a discount on their 
delicious menu selection.  Nippers and their 
parents enjoyed their offerings whilst spending 
time, socially at the club.  

At the end of the Gaza project, we were delighted 
to welcome the ‘Northern Beaches Committee 
for Palestine’ group to celebrate the end of the 
training program for Mohammed and Hasan before 
they headed home to Gaza.  A wonderful pizza 
lunch with time to meet new friends and reflect 
on a project well executed.  We continue to keep 
Mohammed and Hasan in our thoughts.

The bar and club room has been busy as ever 
and a huge thank you to Paul Mathew for his 
dedication to running the bar almost every Sunday 
and many additional times this season.  We are 
always looking out for Club members who have 
an RSA to assist behind the bar, so please get in 
touch if you are interested.

The season fizzled out quicker than we expected, 
however we will be back. If you are interested at all 
in getting involved with events and social activities, 
please contact me as I could always do with extra 
pairs of willing hands.

Claire Oxlade
General Activities Director



General Activities Director
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Gaza Lifesaving Project
In January 2020, we had the pleasure of hosting 
two men from Palestine, Mohammed (Mo) Saleh 
and Hasan Alhabil, to learn about surf lifesaving in 
order to establish a Nippers program and a fully-
fledged surf lifesaving club on Gaza Beach. 

While at North Steyne, Mo and Hasan participated 
on patrols, undertook board and surf rescue 
training, gained CPR and first aid skills, observed 
Nippers to find out about how to run a Nippers 
program, and learnt how to manage and administer 
a surf lifesaving club. They also undertook Bronze 
Medallion training with Mohammed obtaining his 
Surf Rescue Certificate and Hasan achieving his 
Bronze Medallion.  Importantly, as well, Mo and 
Hasan were able to understand and embrace the 
Australian surf lifesaving culture.

Now that they have returned to Gaza, their 
priority is establishing a Nippers program which 
can hopefully be run this year. The next phase of 
the project will be to establish a fully-fledged surf 
lifesaving club, the Gaza Beach Surf Life Saving 
Club, and be accepted for membership by the 
International Life Saving Federation. 

There are several drownings in Gaza each year, 
and with high unemployment and mass poverty, 
surf lifesaving will provide not only valuable 
services in keeping people safe on the beach, but 
be an important outlet for youth to be involved in 
a sporting, social and community activities. The 
Nippers program, initially for kids U6-U10, will be 
open to both boys and girls who will undertake 
all training and activities together. Co-education 
programs such as this are very rare in Gaza, so 
the Gaza Beach Nippers program will be breaking 
new ground.   

North Steyne was approached to become 
involved with this project by the Northern Beaches 
Committee for Palestine which aspires to bring 
Australian surf lifesaving to Gaza. The project to 
bring Palestinians to Australia to learn about surf 
lifesaving has been almost 5 years in the making, 
with North Steyne being involved for the last 3 
years. 

It is interesting to note that there is a strong tie 
with surf lifesaving in Gaza as Australian troops 
stationed there during World War II held carnivals 
on the beach.  We hope that we can restore some 
of this tradition, while improving the lives of young 
people and keeping people safe on the beach in 
Gaza.

During their stay, we received significant media 
interest from national and international news 
outlets. This included coverage on SBS nightly 
news and website, Peter FitzSimons’ column in 
the Sydney Morning Herald, The Guardian and 
various surfing magazines. The story has also 
been syndicated in Arab speaking publications.

A big thank you to all that made Mo and Hasan’s 
stay a successful. A particular thanks to Brian 
Mariotti for putting together such a good Nipper’s 
program, Paul Mathew for showing them some 
of the ropes, Trae Hare-Boyd for providing 
training and Jack Watt for providing training, 
encouragement and translation services to ensure 
they received their bronze medallion and SRC. It 
was a true team effort and we are very proud to 
be part of it. We will continue to support our sister 
club, the Gaza Beach Surf Life Saving Club, for 
many years to come. 
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Competition Director’s Report
2020 has been a challenging year in so many 
ways for surf lifesaving competition as with the rest 
of our lives. The season began as usual with local 
surf boat competition October to December but 
disruptions began with the devastating bushfires 
causing the evacuation of rowers and support 
crews from the George Bass marathon on the 
South Coast in January. 

Our lifesaving team began branch championships 
with good performances in theory and resuscitation 
but a major storm caused the cancellation of the 
remainder of SNB Branch championships when 
Queenscliff beach washed away and all beaches 
were covered in vast amounts of debris.

We were lucky that all competitors from Juniors 
through to Masters were able to compete in NSW 
State championships but the early shutdown of 
the lifesaving season due to the global Covid-19 
pandemic resulted in cancellation of both our club 
championships and the Aussies. A frustration, and 
disappointment for all those who had been training 
hard and preparing for all levels of competition.
Lifesaving.

This season saw the coming together of a new 
Open Patrol Competition team (pictured below)
who surprised themselves with an excellent 
performance at State championships to snag a 
bronze medal. With further training particularly in 
the scenario we may aim even higher next year.

Once again our Champion Lifesavers performed 
very creditably bringing home one gold and two 
bronze medals with all competitors in the points.

Sarah Lally was our only representative at the 
Freshwater Masters carnival in November where 
the surf was a little challenging. 

Kinder conditions welcomed two teams for the Sir 
Adrian Curlewis Twilight Masters carnival at Palm 
Beach. Always a very fun late afternoon teams 

carnival followed by the 
BBQ and prize draw on 
the back lawn. It was great 
to welcome Jono Colwell 
back to competition along 
with the usual suspects. 
Unfortunately the East 
Coast masters was another 
casualty of the major storm 
damage to all Sydney.

A huge vote of thanks to Robert Szewczak and 
Sarah Lally for all their efforts and enthusiasm in 
organization and communication across all areas 
of surf sports.

We’d like to offer a very big thank you to all our 
legends behind the scenes in 2019 and 2020.

Carnival Organizers: Sarah Lally, Damian 
O’Shannassy, Claire Oxlade.
Carnival Officials: Chris Dooley, Keith Abraham, 
Joe Mastrangelo, Frank Traugott, Bernie Burrows, 
Shannon Job, Deb Foote, David Guthrie, Tim 
Lawrence.
Carnival Volunteers:  everyone who helped at both 
the Nipper and Boat Carnivals
Coaches: Col Stanford (boats), Euan Ramsay-
Stewart (boats) Bec Stewart (boards).
IRB support: (carnival water safety): Molly Parker, 
Richard Donaldson, Emma Hillier, Jack Watt, 
Trae Hare-Boyd, Mark Stewart, Dan Hillier, Shane 
O’Neil, Niels Thelosen.

Looking forward to the new season and watching 
the competition grow.

The Competition Team
Deb Foote, Competition Director
Robert Szewczak, Assistant Competition Director
Sarah Lally, Assistant Competition Director
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The 2020 season continued to build on the momentum of 2019 with five competitive crews including two 
masters.  Over the course of 2020 we trained and certified a new sweep from our existing squad and 
recruited four new members to three competition crews.  Away from the surf, another two development 
crews were formed in the key junior demographics of U19 males and U23 Females.  North Steyne 
competition participation was also up this season with representation at local Branch, Ocean Thunder, 
Cronulla, ASRL, Pacific Palms and State carnivals despite the cancellation of Branch Championships and 
Aussies carnivals this season due the Global COVID pandemic. 

2020 started off with some strong performance from the reserve women’s crew, the Tiger Lilies, at the 
local branch carnivals at Newport and Bilgola while our open male’s crew, the Nomads, kicked off their 
Ocean Thunder campaign with the first dead heat for first place in OT history.  

As the season moved on into December and all things turned Christmas the boat crews headed down to 
the Cronulla with the ladies again making the semi-final and the master’s headed down to Bateman’s Bay 
to begin the epic biennial race that is the George Bass Marathon.  At this point the surf boat season began 
to feel the affects of extreme climatic events and the George Bass was cancelled on the second day due 
to historical bushfires wreaking havoc along the NSW coast and beyond.  

Then in January, a ray of light, North Steyne hosted the Manly Australia Day surf boat carnival.  Not even 
the reserve men’s crew breaking an oar on the start line could dampen everyone’s spirits as the whole club 
came together to put on a successful two-day event.  

The North Steyne Surf boat squad returned to southern NSW and Mollymook beach for the ASRL in 
February for some big wave action then onto State and Pacific Palms with some impressive round 
robin results setting things up for a promising Aussies campaign and end to the Ocean Thunder 
series.  Unfortunately, this was not to be the case as the COVID-19 pandemic ended the season 
early leaving a season unfinished but with some great experiences for the squad along the way as 
we look to go into 2021.

Surf Boats
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Competition Results

NSW STATE CHAMPIONSHIP RESULTS
U19 MALE CHAMPION LIFESAVER JOE JENKINS GOLD MEDAL

U19 MALE CHAMPION LIFESAVER TRAE HARE-BOYD BRONZE MEDAL

U19 MALE CHAMPION LIFESAVER EWAN COOPER-FRATER 5TH PLACE

OPEN MALE CHAMPION LIFESAVER JACK WATT BRONZE MEDAL

U19 MALE CHAMPION LIFESAVER TRAE HARE-BOYD BRONZE MEDAL

OPEN PATROL COMPETITION

DEB FOOTE
KYRA JENKINS 
JOE JENKINS
SARAH LALLY
JACK WATT
TRAE HARE-BOYD

BRONZE MEDAL

OPEN FEMALE CHAMPION LIFESAVER KYRA JENKINS 4TH PLACE

30-39 FEMALE CHAMPION LIFESAVER SARAH LALLY 5TH PLACE

40+ FEMALE CHAMPION LIFESAVER DEB FOOTE 5TH PLACE





North Steyne Awards 2019 - 2020
Clem Susans Memorial Trophy 
Best Boatman Rob Szewczak

Rastus Evans Memorial Trophy 
Most Outstanding Surfboat Crew

Male Reserve Buccaneers: Oscar Cowell, Nick Perry,  
Michael Rees-Evans Rob Szewczak

Keith Abraham Trophy 
Assessor of the Year Joe Mastrangelo

Maud Druitt Trophy 
Most Outstanding Team

Open Patrol Competition team:  Sarah Lally, Deb Foote, Jack 
Watt, Kyra Jenkins, Joe Jenkins, Trae Hare-Boyd

Garry O’Sullivan Trophy 
Training Officer of the Year Trae Hare-Boyd

Masters Competitor of the Year Sarah Lally
Open Competitor of the Year Jack Watt
U19 Competitor of the Year Joe Jenkins
Best Junior Patrolman Tom Hamer
Best Junior Patrolwoman Cameron Griffith
Best Senior Patrolman Mark Stewart
Best Senior Patrolwoman Kyra Jenkins
Peter Logan Memorial Shield  
Best First Year Bronze Holder Evie Farrell

Brother Ross Downard Memorial 
Trophy 
Captain’s Trophy

Jack Watt

Harry Taubman Memorial Shield 
Most Lifesaving Awards Jack Watt

Vanessa Anderson Memorial Award Tom Hamer

Neil Newton Memorial Trophy 
Volunteer of the Year Sarah Lally

Alan McClure Memorial award  
Young Club Person of the Year Jack Watt

Philip Hodson Memorial Trophy 
Patrolperson of the Year Euan Ramsey- Stewart

George Morgan Memorial Shield 
Club Person of the Year Euan Ramsey-Stewart

President’s Award Claire Oxlade

George Webb Memorial Trophy 
Patrol of the Year

Patrol 3:  Captain: Ella Falzarano, Tony Falzarano, Des Silberberg, Emma 
Hillier, Shaun Falzarano, Angela Silberberg, James Townsend, Stuart Crofton, 
Ned Hillier, Natalie Silberberg, Peter Marais, Ross Downey, Tom Furlong, Tom 
Hamer, Mitch Bennett
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Patrol Hours 2019 - 2020
Algar Harry 25.83
Aller Andrew 3.25

Altenburger Annika 18.5
Altenburger Michael 27.25
Anderson John 13.75
Andrews Thomas 17.75
Anese lisa 4.75
Auld Hunter 14.25
Auld Maya 9
Aylwin Ignacio 3.5
Barrelle Emily 14.25
Basil-Jones Stephen 13.75
Bell Julia 23
Bellenger James 28
Bennett Mitchell 22.75
Bennetts Sophie 6
Benns Matthew 18
Bernerius Michael 24.75
Birch Ross 18
Birley Joshua 36
Birley Matthew 33
Black Findlay 9.5
Bogatez Ryan 0
Brady Oscar 8.5
Brandson Kai 22.75
Brocklehurst Clara 3.43
Brocklehurst Ethan 4.25
Brown Jeffrey 37

Bull Thomas 9
Bryant Xavier 8.5
Burns Mark 18
Burrows Bernard 22
Butler Holly 19.5
Button Colleen 27.75
Carlile Leo 25.75
Chapman Malcolm 28
Chapman Rebecca 23.25
Cimino Emilia 32.75
Clare Hanna 27.5
Collins William 18.5
Collis Archie 13.25
Colwell Jonathan 22.75
Cooper Joanne 47.25
Cooper Joanne 19.75
Cooper Lee 18
Cooper-Frater Ewan 32.5
Cowell David 33.75
Cowell Oscar 59.75
Crofton Stuart 31.5

Daniels Elouise 4.75
Donaldson Richard 55.48
Davis Oscar 8
Doughty Ella 20
Downey Ross 40.25
Edwards Danielle 46.5
Egden Sophie 53.5
Ell Thomas 9
Falzarano Ella 28.25
Falzarano Shaun 20.23
Falzarano Tonino 38.75
Farrell Evie 35.75
Farrell Sean 32.75
Ferencz Oliver 14.75
Filmer Annabel 15
Fisher Maxwell 32
Fletcher Rory 4.75
Flynn Daniel 22.75
Foote Deborah 26.5
Ford Aidan 19
Ford Dylan 19
Frazer Jodie 58.75
Furlong Peter 23.25
Furlong Thomas 9.75
Garling Matthew 22.5
Gertenbach Matthew 10.73
Gibbeson Daniel 14.25
Gibbs 
Stewart

Christine 54

Gompes Danny 31.5
Gordon Luke 7.75
Graham Ed 12.25
Grant Jennifer 13.75
Greenhalgh Nick 18.5
Griffith Cameron 27.5
Griffiths Toby 30.5
Guthrie David 26.75
Hamer Tom 63.5

Hare Mechelle 33.25
Hare-Boyd Tracey 75.46
Hare-Boyd Trae 111.21
Harrington Sam 0
Hartwig Hunter 3.25
Haskard Piers 6.25
Hassell James 18.5
Hawley James 7.67
Heffernan Caitlin 32.25
Henzlik Kirk 20.5
Herbert Jack 53.25

Herbert Peter 45.25
Hickey Harry 16.25
Hillier Abbey 21.75
Hillier Daniel 74
Hillier Emma 62.31
Hillier Ned 44
Hogan Harrison 9.5
Holder Solomon 15.75
Housego Clare 24.75
Howes Zara 58.25
Isaacs Sam 0
Jahromi Kiyan 4.75
Jefferson Kimberley 4.25
Jenkins Joseph 54
Jenkins Kyra 73.48
Jenkins Llewellyn 16.25
Job Shannon 13.25
Jones Zeke 22.75
Kasalo Mia 17.25
Kasalo Tiana 18.5
Kehoe Olivia 17.75
Kinghorn Rachel 34.75
Kinghorn Sarah 44
Koppers Jonah 9
Lally Sarah 27.25
Landrak Lexie 19.75
Landrak Zoe 22.75
Landsey Peter 4.75
Lang Gordon 0
Langfield Joseph 14.75
Lavers Daniel 13.25
Lavers Margaret 17.25
Leafe Samuel 0
Leong Stephen 4.75

Levett Rebecca 0
Londero Samantha 0
Lugg Ethan 3.75
Macintyre Rory 27.5
Macken Philip 9.5
Macwilliam Sara 29.75
Maddox Mark 45.71
Makim William 18.75
Mallo Diez Gonzalo 9.5
Mansfield Bruce 32.25
Marais Pieter 48.25
Mansfield Jett 9
Mariotti Brian 41.75
Marschner Monique 18
Marshall Patrick 3
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Mason Chloe 27.5
Mason Greer 9.5
Mastrangelo Joe 23.25
Mastrangelo Steven 33.75
Matheson Hamish 9
Mathew Paul 61.5
Mavor Louise 32.25
Maybury Isabella 12.25
McCloskey Aaron 39.5
McCloskey Jack 23.25
McCloskey Thomas 4.75
McEwen Douglas 18
Menzies Xavier 18
Miller Hill Blaise 0
Mercer Thomas 4.25
Morgan Jackson 8.5
Muller Annika 0
Muller Lukas 9.5
Muller Yannick 0
Munro Kate 18
Neighbour Mark 13.75
Newcomb Erik 22.25
O’Neill Jodie 27.25
O’Neill Shane 41.75
Opoyan Michael 15.67
O’Reilly Jessica 37
O’Shannassy Damian 9
Oxlade Claire 42.75
Parker Molly 46.25
Parry Ben 23.5
Patrick Brett 20.75
Peacock- 
Smith

Maxine 22.75

Peake Malcolm 22.75
Perry Nicholas 40
Pignone Nicholas 0
Platt Chloe 25.5
Platt Edward 34.25
Pounder Estella 16
Purvis James 56.25
Purvis Jessica 43.5
Purvis Joseph 40.75
Ramsey-
Stewart

Euan 53.87

Rees-Evans Michael 24.58
Rees-Evans Pip 21.5
Reid Christopher 4
Reid James 35.75
Reid Olivia 19

Remedios Antonio 18.5
Ribeiro Salvador 32.25
Richardson Frazer 37.75
Richardson Rose 18.75
Riordan Matthew 22.75
Rose Angus 12.75
Russell Harry 29.5
Salier Alexandra 34.75
Schmidt Maddi 0
Shea Casey 17
Silberberg Angela 17.1
Silberberg Caroline 2.25
Silberberg Desmond 38
Silberberg Natalie 18.08
Silvy Kevin 22.75
Sloan Oliver 9.5
Small Xavier 20.5
Spora Harry 7.18
Stewart Mark 69.2
Stewart Mia 0
Stirling Alexandra 49.75
Swann Phoenix 9.5
Szewczak Robert 20.25
Swinfield Lachlan 9
Takeda Riana 23.25
Taylor Henry 11.75
Taylor Oliver 7.5
Tetley Sophie 20
Thelosen Niels 27
Tinker Zeyna 27
Tompson Eliza 29.5
Townsend James 12.6
Traugott Adam 0
Traugott Frank 62.3
Tucker Josh 4.75
Tucker Kathryn 32.25
Tumilty Roisin 42.5
Twigg Brock 3.25
Tyrrell Aidan 40.21
Unicomb Jasmine 18.5
Ure Karen 0
Van der 
Pluijm

Lachlan 30.25

Van Dyck George 16.25
Van Dyck Mark 13.75
Wait Fraser 18.5
Wait Thomas 18.5
Walker Edward 10
Walton Cerys 23.25

Walton Maya 21.5
Watkins Emily 20.35
Watkins Samuel 21
Watt Jack 138.94
Watt Ruby 30.67
Wessels Braydon 13.25
Wessels Tylor 9
Wheen Liam 25.25
Whitnall Patrick 36.5
Wickham Lily 16.75
Wilson Blake 4.75
Wong Kyle 31
Woodward Chloe 13.58
Woodward Scott 23.98
Yandle Elliot 36.25
Yarnell Caroline 26
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Surf Lifesaving Sydney Northern Beaches
Thank you to SLSSNB for supporting our Club 
especially in a season which will definitely go down 
in history as one to remember.  With each club 
having to step up to new procedures and policies, 
thanks must go to  the team at SLS SNB for their 
support and guidance.

It was the season that our very own Tracey Hare- 
Boyd took over the President position from Doug 
Menzies who stood down for retirement. Tracey 
is the first female Branch President in it’s 60 year 
history. Tracey and her team are only a phone call 
away to assist in making all new processes filtered 
down from SLSA and SLSNSW achievable.  

Under COVID-19 conditions, SLSSNB still 
managed to hold their Awards of Excellence, at 
which North Steyne SLSC was recognised again 
this year, coming home with three prestigious 
awards.

Congratulations goes to Trae Hare-Boyd who 
was voted Young Volunteer of the Year, very 
well deserved, we are proud to have Trae’s 
committment  and dedication at North Steyne.  

Also to Joe Mastrangelo, who received Club 
Assessor of the Year!  We are thrilled to have Joe 
on our team. He brings a wealth of experience and 
expertise to every education session.

North Styene SLSC also took home the Award 
of Excellence for the best Community Education 
Program for the Gaza Surf Lifesaving Project. 

What a year!  The Gaza project is incredible to 
be a part of.  After taking five years to get to this 
training stage at North Steyne, it brought with it 
much happiness, all our members involved will 
atest that it is a privelege to support Mo and Hasan 
on their mission to take our nippers program and 
make it a success on the beach in Gaza.

We at North Steyne are so proud to have no 
drownings on our beach and we hopeful that one 
day the Gaza Surf Club will reach a season with 
none too. 

We would also like to congratulate Richard 
Donaldson on being a SLSSNB Training Officer 
finalist in their 2019/20 Awards of Excellence.

May the recognition of these awards inspire each 
and every member to immerse themselves in all 
things North Steyne.

Congratulations goes to all our members in a 
season that certainley deserves this stature of 
Excellence.
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NOTICE OF THE 113TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
SEASON 2019/2020

Notice is hereby given that the One Hundredth and Thirteenth Annual General Meeting of the 

North Steyne Surf Life Saving Club Inc. to be held in the Club Hall

Saturday 12 September 2020 commencing at 4:00pm.

AGENDA

1.	 Welcome by the President

2.	 Apologies

3.	 A minutes silence in tribute to the recent loss of members and friends within the surf lifesaving community

4.	 Reading and approval of the Minutes for the 112th Annual General Meeting, 21 July 2019

5.	 Presentation and approval of the 113th Annual Report and Financial Statements

6.	 Presentation of Awards and Plaques and Future Fund Scholarships

7.	 Election and appointment of the following positions for the 2020/21 season:

a.	 Directors (11) and Assistant Directors (9)

b.	 Judiciary Panel (4)

c.	 Life Membership and Honours Panel (4) 

d.	 Rules Panel  (4) 

e.	 Patrons,  Trustees and Auditor

8.	 Presentation of the building masterplan

9.	 General business (written advice required one week prior to meeting)

Nominations for Directors, Assistant Directors, Panels, Patrons and Trustees will be accepted in writing by 
the Secretary up until 5pm on Friday 4 September 2020. Nomination forms are available from North Steyne’s 
Administration Manager (admin@northsteyneslsc.com.au) and the Club’s website.

Members entitled to vote and stand for office are determined in Part 2 Section 5 of the North Steyne SLSC 
Constitution, consistent with SLSA Regulation 6.4 (to source - search SLSA Regulation 6.4 and download the PDF). 
Members entitled to vote under the Regulation are Active members, Active Reserve members, Long Service 
members and Life Members who are financial members of the Club.

Cath Hillier 
Secretary  
North Steyne SLSC
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Treasurer’s Report
I am pleased to present the 2020 Financial Report 
for the North Steyne Surf Life Saving Club on 
behalf of the Board.

Despite an early end to the season in March, we 
had a good year financially. We made a net profit 
of $57,777, which is only slightly less than last 
season and our second-best financial result over 
the last 5 years. We also increased our cash at 
bank by $139,922. Our total accumulated earnings 
increased by $66,656 to a total of $754,555 as a 
result of the net profit and the allocation of reserves 
to the Special Purpose Funds. Having a strong 
balance sheet and cash position will be crucial in 
ensuring sustainability during this uncertain time.

Our total income was $285,525. This was a 
decrease from last season due to a decline in 
donations and sponsorships with events not being 
held, and the lack of a major donation which we 
received in 2019 for the new surf boat . There was 
also a decrease in grant monies received as we 
did not spend as much on building upgrades as we 
did in the previous season. Conversely, and most 
pleasingly, membership revenue was up by almost 
10%.  We also received Government support in 
the form of JobKeeper and a cashflow boost which 
contributed to our positive bottom line.

Our fundraising efforts were very positive with an 
increase in both BBQ and bar revenue. We also 
held two very successful carnivals which provided 
a combined surplus of $10,908. This helped to 
offset the loss of revenue from our ocean swim 
which had to be cancelled at the last minute due 
to COVID-19.

Operating expenses were 
substantially down from the 
previous year, mainly due 
to the fact that we did not 
have any major expenditure 
on the building and some 
of our planned events did 
not take place. Most other 
expenses remained the 
same with slight increases in employee costs and 
slight decreases in competition, education and 
lifesaving expenses.  

Looking forward, we are expecting challenging 
times ahead.  There is no doubt our Club will 
need to operate differently with the current 
restrictions due to the COVID-19 pandemic. Over 
the offseason, we have put in place a number of 
measures to safeguard our members and ensure 
compliance with all prescribed health regulations. 
This had meant additional expenditure on cleaning, 
cleaning products and other systems to ensure 
we are COVID safe. Hopefully these measures 
are temporary. Regardless we have established a 
strong foundation, and no doubt with the support 
of members and our community will have a very 
positive 2020/2021 season.  

Tony Falzarano 
Treasurer
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Audited Financial Statement 2019 - 2020

Statement	of	Comprehensive	Income for the year ended 31	May	2020 

Income 
Refer to 

notes to the 
accounts: 2020 2019 

Operating income 10  120,896 109,561 
Donations & sponsorship    27,398 73,773 
Grants  43,486 137,468 
Government Assistance  16,000 -  
Fundraising activities 9 66,110 67,521 
Interest received   11,635 12,352 
Total income   285,525 400,675 
Expenses     
Operating expenses 11 165,227 261,763 
Depreciation and amortisation 8 20,201 32,245 
Fundraising activities 9 31,986 34,035 
Scholarships 7 1,500 1,500 
Special purpose fund allocations 7 8,834 10,899 
Total expenses   227,748 340,442 
Profit/(loss) for the year  57,777 60,233 

 

Note: The statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 May 2020 should be 
read in conjunction with the notes that accompany on the following pages. 
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Statement	of	Financial	Position as at 31	May	2020 

Current assets 
Refer to notes 

to the 
accounts: 2020 2019 

Cash and cash equivalents 6 647,000 507,008 
Trade debtors and prepayments   24,183 109,582 
Inventory   42,097 28,861 
Total	current	assets   713,280 645,451 
Non-current	assets     
Property, plant and equipment 8 583,894 573,087 
Less: accumulated depreciation 8 (505,242) (506,841) 
Total non-current	assets   78,652 66,246 
Total assets   791,932 711,697 
Current Liabilities     
Trade creditors and accruals  18,133 4,554 

Deferred Income  19,244 19,244 
Total current	liabilities   37,377 23,798 
Total liabilities   37,377 23,798 
Net assets   754,555 687,899 
Accumulated	funds     
Special purpose funds 7 223,239 214,405 
Retained earnings    473,494 413,261 
Prior year adjustment    45 0 
Current year earnings   57,777 60,233 
Total	accumulated	earnings   754,555 687,899 

 

Note: The statement of financial position for the year ended 31 May 2020 should be read in 
conjunction with the notes that accompany on the following pages. 

  

Audited Financial Statements continued...
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Statement	of	Cash	Flows for the year ended 31	May	2020 
Cash	flows	from	operating	activities Refer to notes 

to	the	accounts: 2020 2019 
Cash receipts in the course of operations   353,026 301,665 
Cash payments in the course of operations   (198,324) (286,569) 
Net	cash	flow	from	operating	activities  12 154,702 15,096 
Cash	flows	from	investing	activities     
Receipt from sale of plant and equipment   13,637 -  
Payment for plant and equipment  (39,981) (54,337) 
Interest received    11,635 12,352 
Net	cash	flow	from	investing	activities   (14,710) (41,985) 
Net	increase/(decrease) in	cash	flow    139,992 (26,889) 
Cash at beginning of the year   507,008 533,897 
Cash at the end of the year 6 647,000 507,008 
Net	change	in	cash	held   139,992 (26,889) 

  

 

Note: The statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 May 2020 should be read in 
conjunction with the notes that accompany on the following pages. 
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Audited Financial Statements continued...

Notes to the	Financial	Statements	for	the	year ended 31	May	2020 

Note 1 - Summary	of	significant	accounting	policies 
 
The following explains the significant accounting policies that have been adopted in the 
preparation of the financial statements. Unless otherwise stated, such accounting policies were 
also adopted in the corresponding reporting period. 
 

General 
 

The financial report is a special purpose financial report prepared in order to satisfy the 
financial report preparation requirements of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits 
Commission and Charitable Fundraising Act. The board has determined that the club is not a 
reporting entity. North Steyne Surf Life Saving Club Inc is a not-for-profit entity for the purpose 
of preparing the financial statements. 
 
The financial report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Division 60 
of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the following specific 
accounting policies, which are consistent with the previous period unless otherwise stated, 
have been adopted in the preparation of this report. 
 
Basis	of	accounting 
 
The statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and is based on historic costs and 
do not take into account changing money values, or, except where stated, current valuations 
of non-current assets. 
 
Registration fees 
 
All registration fees are bought to account in the year to which they apply as and when 
received from the members. The capitation fees, due to Surf Life Saving New South Wales 
Inc and Sydney Northern Beaches Surf Life Saving, are remitted as and when invoiced and 
shown as a separate expenditure item. 
 
Donations and sponsorship income 
 
Donations & sponsorship income is recognised when amounts are received or receivable. 
 
Grants 
 
Grants are recognised in the same period as the related expense or asset is recognised.  
Grants received in advance are shown as deferred income. 
 
Government	Assistance 
 
Government assistance represents the Boosting Cash Flow and JobKeeper payments 
received in response to COVID-19. 
 
Cash at bank 
 
Cash at bank and term deposits represents monies deposited with the Commonwealth Bank 
of Australia and Bank of Queensland.  
 
Inventories 
 
Inventories have been valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
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Property, plant and equipment 
 

i. Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost, independent of directors’ valuations. 
All assets are depreciated over their useful life 

 
ii. Over the years, the club has collected considerable memorabilia. These memorabilia 

were originally recorded at a nominal value but has subsequently been fully depreciated 
to zero - hence the financial accounts do not ascribe any value to memorabilia assets 

 
iii. The cost of the day to day servicing of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the 

profit and loss as incurred 
 

iv. Net depreciation and amortisation rates used for each major class of asset are: 
 

Asset	class Depreciation	% 
Bar equipment 15.00% 
BBQ equipment 33.33% 
Boards and skis 33.33% 
Gymnasium 
equipment 10.00% 

IRB & motors 20.00% 
IT equipment and 
televisions 33.33% 

Lifesaving 
equipment 25.00% 

Lockers 10.00% 
Office fit-out 10.00% 
Surfboats and oars 16.67% 

 
Note 2 – Related parties 
 
Transactions with committee members or their committee-member related entity occurred within 
a normal member or supplier relationship on terms and conditions no more favourable that those 
which it is reasonable to expect that the entity would have adopted if dealing with the committee 
member or their committee-member at arms-length in the same circumstance. 
 
Note 3 – Segment	information 
 
The club derives revenue primarily from its members, sponsors and fundraising activities to 
support its role in providing beach life saving services and operations. The club’s activities are 
principally carried out at North Steyne Beach, located in NSW. 
 
Note 4 – Subsequent events 
 
The continuing COVID-19 pandemic and related restrictions will impact our operations due to 
government mandated compliance requirements and additional WHS measures. It is expected 
that revenue will also be impacted across a number of areas, but some of the revenue shortfall 
will be offset by COVID related grants and government support.  North Steyne is a COVID safe 
compliant business. 
 
Our Lifesaving Services Agreement is on similar terms and levels as this past season and we 
continue to operate under the same terms and conditions as per our license agreement, now 
expired. 
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Audited Financial Statements continued...

Note 5 – NSW Government	grant for club facilities	upgrades 
 
Miscellaneous building upgrades were undertaken with funding applied from NSW Government 
grants. Several projects were not carried out due to COVID-19 restrictions. 

Note 6 – Reconciliation	of	cash	and	cash	equivalents 
 
Cash at the end of the reporting period as shown in the statement of cash flows, is reconciled to 
the related item in the statement of financial positions. It includes both cash at hand and monies 
at bank and represented here: 
 

Reconciliation	of	cash	and	cash	equivalents 
  2020 2019 
Cash on hand 945  650  
Cash at bank 176,440 48,227 
Bank term deposit 469,615 458,131 
Account	balance 647,000 507,008 

 
7 – Special	purpose funds 
 
The Future Fund had its origins through donations and bequests made to the club. Its purpose is 
to provide a future means of funding and promoting surf lifesaving including purchases of 
lifesaving equipment and endeavours designed to encourage members in gaining surf lifesaving 
skills.  The Building Fund receives donations and grants specifically for club building projects. 
 

Reconciliation	of	special	purpose funds	(including	Building Fund) 
  2020 2019 
Opening balance 214,405 203,506 
Contributions made in year 5,453 7,551 
Interest earned 4,881 4,848 
Expenditure (1,500) (1,500) 
Account	balance 223,239 214,405 
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Note 8 – Property,	plant	and	equipment 
 

Asset	and	depreciation	reconciliation 

Assets 
Boards	&	

skis 
Furniture & 

fittings Gym 
IRB	&	
motors IT 

Life 
saving	 

Surfboats 
& trailers Total 

Prior year 
total 

Balance	–  
1st	June	2019 149,836 144,754 41,992 79,563 4,830 67,962 84,150 573,087 567,324 

Additions 2,344 678  21,675  2,820 12,464 39,981 54,337 

Disposals       (29,174) (29,174) (48,574) 
Total asset 
balance	–  
31st	May	2020 152,180 145,432 41,992 101,238 4,830 70,782 67,440 583,894 573,087 

Depreciation                   
Balance	–  
1st	June	2019 (141,348) (123,112) (39,199) (79,536) (4,830) (67,962) (50,854) (506,841) (523,170) 

Disposals       21,800 21,800 48,574 

Depreciation (4,427) (6,630) (840) (757)  (141) (7,406) (20,201) (32,245) 
Balance	–  
31st	May	2020 (145,775) (129,742) (40,039) (80,293) (4,830) (68,103) (36,460) (505,242) (506,841) 
Net asset 
balance	–  
31st	May	2020 6,405 15,690 1,953 20,945 0 2,679 30,980 78,652 66,246 

 
 
Note	9	– Fundraising	statement	for	the	year	ended	31	May	2020 
 
Funds were provided through the following activities and events: 
 

Type of fundraising Income Expenses 
Net surplus/ 
(loss)	2020 

Prior year 
total 

Donations and sponsorships 27,398 - 27,398 73,773 
BBQ 36,930 20,094 16,836 14,687 
Bar 12,200 7,811 4,389 764 
Nipper Carnival hosting 6,148 865 5,283 - 
Boat Carnival hosting 7,975 2,350  5,625  - 
Ocean swim 1,463 646 817 15,019 
Other Income - - - 199 
Raffles 1,394 220 1,174 2,817 
Total 93,508 31,986 61,522 107,259 

 
Income from fundraising was applied to the following club functions and activities: 
 
Application	of	fundraising	income	during	year Amount 
Lifesaving 13,107 
Training & Education 4,605 
Coaching and competition 34,740 
Special Purpose Funds 5,453 
Special Needs Nipper 3,617 
Total 61,522 
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Audited Financial Statements continued...

Note	10	– Operating income 
 

 2020 2019 
Membership 66,836 60,419 

Clothing and merchandise sales 11,811 15,176 
Rental income 22,097 22,097 
Competition 4,796 4,839 
Training and education 8,910 7,030 
Profit on Sales of Fixed Assets 6,263 - 
Sundry income 181 - 
Total operating income 120,896 109,561 

 
 
Note 11 – Operating expenses 
 

 2020 2019 
Administration 20,527 26,146 

Capitation 20,431 19,759 

Club facilities upgrades  12,036 97,088 
Ripper Nippers 7,510 8,541 
Clothing 12,351 10,957 
Employee costs 22,628 19,916 
Utilities 9,975 11,266 
Insurance 5,708 5,370 
Advertising 1,609 1,876 
Competition 34,740 36,272 
Education 4,605 8,662 
Lifesaving 13,107 15,909 
Total operating expenses 165,227 261,762 

 
 

 
  



North Steyne Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 113th Annual Report | Page 49

Note 12 – Cash	flow	information 
 
Reconciliation of cash flow from operating activities with net profit 
 
 2020 2019 

Profit for the year 

Adjust for non-cash items 

Depreciation & amortisation 

Profit on sale of fixed assets 

Special funds movement 

57,777  

 

20,201 

(6,263) 

8,835 

60,233  

 

32,245 

- 

10,899 

Sub-total 

Less interest received. Shown separately in cash 
flows from investing activities 

80,550 

(11,635) 

103,377 

(12,352) 

Cash	flow	before	movement	in	trade	debtors,	
inventory	and	trade	creditors	 

Movement in 

Trade debtors – decrease/(increase) 

Inventory – decrease/(increase) 

Trade creditors – increase/(decrease) 

Deferred Income – increase/(decrease) 

68,915 
 

 

85,399 

(13,236) 

13,624 

- 

91,025 
 

 

(86,657) 

428 

(8,944) 

19,244 

Net	cash	flow	from	operating	activities 154,702 15,096 
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Independent Auditor’s Report  
To the Members of North Steyne Surf Life Saving Club Inc.  
 

Opinion  
 
I have audited the financial report of North Steyne Surf Life Saving Club Inc., (“the Club”), which comprises the 
statement of financial position as at 31 May 2020, the statement of comprehensive income and the statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies, and the statement of members of the committee.   
 
In my opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Club is in accordance with Division 60 of the Australian 
Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, including:  
 

a) giving a true and fair view of the Club’s financial position as at 31 May 2020 and of its financial 
performance and cash flows for the year then ended; and  

b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards to the extent described in Note 1 and Division 60 of 
the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2013. 

 
I also report that in accordance with the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and Charitable Fundraising Regulations. 
 

a) the accounting and associated records have been properly kept during the year. 
b) monies received as a result of fundraising appeals conducted during the year have been properly 

accounted for and applied; and 
c) at the date of this report there are reasonable grounds to believe the club will be able to pay its debts 

as and when they fall due. 
 

Basis for Opinion  
 
I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of my report. I 
am independent of the Club in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the Accounting 
Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) 
that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Australia. I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with the Code.  
 
I confirm that the independence declaration required by Division 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits 
Commission Act 2012, which has been given to the directors, would be in the same terms if given as at the time of 
this auditor’s report.  
 
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.  
 
Emphasis of Matter – Basis of Accounting  
 
I draw attention to Note 1 to the financial report, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial report has 
been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the financial reporting responsibilities under the Australian Charities and 
Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012.  As a result, the financial report may not be suitable for another purpose. My 
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
 
 
Responsibilities of Management and the Directors’ for the Financial Report 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation of the special purpose financial report that gives a true and fair view 
in accordance with the relevant Australian Accounting Standards in accordance with the Australian Charities and 
Not-for profits Commission Regulations 2013, the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, 
the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and Charitable Fundraising Regulations and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the special purpose financial report, management is responsible for assessing the Club’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
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2 

concern basis of accounting unless management either intend to liquidate the Club or to cease operations, or have 
no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
The directors of the Club are responsible for overseeing the Club’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise professional judgement and 
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also:  
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Club’s internal control.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.  

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Club’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Club to cease to continue as a going concern.  

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.  

 
I communicate with the directors regarding among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit.  
 
I also provide the directors with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on my independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
Independence 
 
In conducting this audit, I have complied with the APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. 
 
   
 
 
Trevor Lane FCA 
Chartered Accountant  
Honorary Auditor 
 
  
 
Date 
 

Date 7 September 2020
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Statement by Principal Officers of the Board 

 
 

This declaration is made in accordance with the NSW Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and the 
Charitable Fundraising Regulations. 
 
The Board of the North Steyne Surf Living Saving Club Inc. had determined that the club is not a 
reporting entity and that the special purpose financial report should be prepared in accordance with 
accounting policies outlined in Note 1 to the financial statements. 
 
In the opinion of the Board, the financial report as set out in the preceding pages: 

 
1. Presents a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of North Steyne Surf Life Saving Club 

Inc. as at 31 May 2020 and performance for the year ended on that date with respect to 
fundraising appeals; 
 

2. The provision of the Act, the Regulations under the Act and the conditions attached to the 
fundraising authority have been complied with by the club; 
 

3. The internal controls exercised by the club are appropriate and effective in accounting for all 
income received and applied by the club from its fundraising activities; 
 

4. At the dates of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that North Steyne 
Surf Life Saving Club Inc. will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and 
payable; and 
 

5. The financial statements and notes satisfy the requirements of the Australian Charities and 
Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012. 
 

This declaration is made in accordance with sub-section 60.15(2) of the Australian Charities and Not-
for-profits Commission Regulation 2013. 
 
 

 
Chris Gibbs Stewart, President 
 

 
  
 
 

Tony Falzarano, Treasurer 
 
 
Dated   4 September 2020 
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Financial Members 2019 - 2020
Life Members
Arthur	 McCarroll
Bernard Burrows
Colin	 Stanford
Damian O’Shannassy
Garry	 O’Sullivan
John	 Sutherland
Jonathan Colwell
Keith	 Abraham
Keith	 Crampton
Nicholas Roelvink
Paul	 Day
Paul	 Hull
Paul	 Mathew
Peter	 St John
Ronald	 Morton
Shan	 Grose
Simon	 Fry
Trevor	 Lane

Award Members
Chris	 Dooley
Delia	 Farrell
Scott	 Farrell
Michael Jenkins
Geoffrey Kinghorn

Active Reserve
Lee Cooper
Richard Donaldson
Stephen Hoare
Douglas McEwen
Malcolm Peake
Maxine Peacock-Smith

Honorary Members
Audrey	 Bruen
David	 Hay
Jean	 Hay
Andrew Taylor

Active Senior
Hazan	 Alhabil
Annika	 Altenburger
Michael Altenburger
Stephen Basil-Jones
Julia	 Bell
Matthew Benham
Matthew Benns
Michael Bernerius
Ryan Bogatez
Kai Brandson
Jeffrey	 Brown
Mark	 Burns
Colleen Button
Malcolm Chapman
Rebecca Chapman
Joanne	Cooper
David	 Cowell

Euan Ramsey-Stewart
Michael	Rees-Evans
Salvador Ribeiro
Matthew Riordan
Mohammed Saleh
Angela	 Silberberg
Desmond Silberberg
Kevin	 Silvy
Lee	 Steadman
Mark	 Stewart
Mia	 Stewart
Alexandra Stirling
Robert	 Szewczak
Riana	 Takeda
Niels	 Thelosen
Zeyna	 Tinker
James	 Townsend
Frans	 Traugott
Roisin	 Tumilty
David	 Unicomb
George	Van Dyck
Mark	 Van Dyck
Thomas Wait
Samuel	Watkins
Jack	 Watt
Braydon Wessels
Patrick	 Whitnall
Rob	 Wilde
Greg	 Windsham
Gus	 Wong
Kyle	 Wong
Scott	 Woodward
Elliot	 Yandle
Caroline Yarnell

Active 15 – 18 years
Harry Algar
Andrew Aller
Thomas Andrews
Hunter	 Auld
Maya	 Auld
Emily	 Barrelle
James	 Bellenger
Mitchell Bennett
Sophie	 Bennetts
Joshua	Birley
Oscar	 Brady
Thomas Bull
Michael Burley
Holly Butler
Leo Carlile
Hanna	 Clare
Archie	 Collis
Ewan	 Cooper-Frater
Oscar	 Cowell
Samuel	Cowell
Ella Doughty
Sean Farrell
Oliver	 Ferencz

Stuart	 Crofton
Danielle Edwards
Sophie	 Egden
Ella	 Falzarano
Shaun	 Falzarano
Tonino	 Falzarano
Daniel	 Flynn
Jodie	 Frazer
Peter	 Furlong
Matthew Garling
Matthew Gertenbach
Daniel	 Gibbeson
Christine Gibbs Stewart
Danny	 Gompes
Luke	 Gordon
Nick	 Greenhalgh
David	 Guthrie
Mechelle Hare
Tracey	 Hare-Boyd
Trae	 Hare-Boyd
Piers	 Haskard
James	 Hassell
Chris	 Haughton
Kirk	 Henzlik
Harry	 Hickey
Daniel	 Hillier
Emma	 Hillier
Kimberley Jefferson
Kyra	 Jenkins
Llewellyn Jenkins
Sarah	 Lally
Margaret Lavers
Stephen Leong
Rory	 Macintyre
Philip	 Macken
Sara	 Macwilliam
Mark	 Maddox
Gonzalo Mallo Diez
Bruce	 Mansfield
Brian	 Mariotti
Steven	 Mastrangelo
Hamish	Matheson
Louise	 Mavor
Isabella	Maybury
Blaise	 Miller Hill
Erik	 Newcomb
Shane	 O’Neill
Claire	 Oxlade
Molly	 Parker
Ben	 Parry
Brett	 Patrick
Nicholas Perry
Fernando Pinto
Chloe	 Platt
Edward	Platt
Estella	 Pounder
James	 Purvis
Jessica	Purvis
Maxwell Fisher
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Rory Fletcher
Ed Graham
Jennifer Grant
Cameron Griffith
Toby	 Griffiths
Hunter	 Hartwig
James	 Hawley
Jack	 Herbert
Peter	 Herbert
Abbey	 Hillier
Indya	 Hogan
Solomon Holder
Clare	 Housego
Zara	 Howes
Kiyan	 Jahromi
Joseph	Jenkins
Zeke	 Jones
Mia	 Kasalo
Olivia	 Kehoe
Rachel	 Kinghorn
Sarah	 Kinghorn
Jonah	 Koppers
Zoe	 Landrak
Joseph	Langfield
Daniel	 Lavers
Samuel	Leafe
Rebecca Levett
Samantha Londero
Ethan	 Lugg
William	Makim
Pieter	 Marais
Monique Marschner
Patrick	 Marshall
Aaron	 McCloskey
Jack	 McCloskey
Xavier	 Menzies
Jackson Morgan
Yannick	Muller
Isla	 Parren
Joseph	Purvis
Pip	 Rees-Evans
James	 Reid
Olivia	 Reid
Frazer	 Richardson
Rose	 Richardson
Maddi	 Schmidt
Caroline Silberberg
Oliver	 Sloan
Harry	 Spora
Phoenix Swann
Sophie	 Tetley
Eliza	 Tompson
Brock	 Twigg
Aidan	 Tyrrell
Lachlan	Van der Pluijm
Edward	Walker
Maya	 Walton
Emily	 Watkins
Ruby	 Watt

Tylor	 Wessels
Lily	 Wickham
Zach	 Wong
Chloe	 Woodward

Cadets
Matthew Birley
Findlay	Black
Ethan	 Brocklehurst
Xavier	 Burkett
Emilia	 Cimino
William Collins
Elouise	Daniels
Ross	 Downey
Evie	 Farrell
Thomas Furlong
Tom Hamer
Sam	 Harrington
Caitlin	 Heffernan
Ned	 Hillier
Harrison Hogan
Marley	 Howe
Tiana	 Kasalo
Chloe	 Mason
Annika	 Muller
Jodie	 O’Neill
Jessica	O’Reilly
Oscar	 Odell
Antonio Remedios
Harry	 Russell
Natalie	 Silberberg
Josh	 Tucker
Kathryn Tucker
Jasmine Unicomb
Oscar	 Vasilaras
Fraser	 Wait
Cerys	 Walton
Liam	 Wheen

Long Service
John	 Anderson
Mark	 Ballesty
Shawn	 Ballesty
Ross	 Birch
Peter	 Chapman
Deborah Foote
Timothy	Fry
Darren	 Gore
Robyn	 Humphrey
Shannon Job
Peter	 Landsey
Gordon	Lang
Timothy	Leonard
Joe	 Mastrangelo
William	McLerie
Todd	 Moore
Kate	 Munro
Mark	 Neighbour
Clem	 O’Grady

Anthony Purcell
Christopher Reid
Peter	 Rogers
Alexandra Salier
Murray	 Stewart
Rebecca Stewart
Paul	 Thomson
Adam	 Traugott

Past Active
Kim	 Peacock-Smith

Associate General
James	 Abbott
Scott	 Abbott
Ahmed	 Aboushabana
Peter	 Aked
Yursy	 Aleksyeyenko
Michael	Allen
lisa	 Anese
Duncan	Ayres
Daniel	 Badstue
Craig	 Bagshaw
Nigel	 Barriscale
Oliver	 Baumann
Keryn	 Bayliss
Daniel	 Bekis
Robin	 Bell
Colette	 Benham
David	 Bennetts
Peter	 Binns
Jennifer	Blank-Tremblay
Nigel	 Blunden
Isabel	 Botha
Mark	 Brady
Roger	 Brant
Bas	 Breure
Matthew Brocklehurst
David	 Brooks
Scott	 Brownlaw
Hillary	 Burrows
Matt	 Cape
Keith	 Cawthorne
Murray	 Chatfied
Norm	 Chow
Paul	 Cole
Stuart	 Colhoun
Alex	 Collinson
Kris	 De Laine
Pierre	 De Laine
Rita	 Delmar
Ashley	 Donaldson
Eveline	Dowling
Matthew Dowling
Alexander Drake
Catherine Drake
Jo	 Duncan
Keir	 Duncan
Stuart	 Duxbury
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Sarkis	 Elia
Mark	 Ellis
Janice	 Faaolatane
Sarah	 Falzarano
Eliza	 Faulk
Laura	 Ficorilli
Anita	 Filmer
Paul	 Fishburn
Rebecca Fishburn
Matthew Fisk
Kylie	 Ford
Peter	 Frater
Eleanor	Fuller
Robin	 Furlong
Benoit	 Gaudreault
James	 Gerrish
Patrick	 Giles-Jones
Shiho	 Giles-Jones
Mike	 Goldsworth
Michael	Goldsworthy
Matthew Gower
Rob	 Grabham
David	 Grose
Grace	 Guan
Katrina	 Guthrie
Andrew	Hall
Jade	 Harkness
Sascha	Harms
Jane	 Hart
Hannah	Henry
Peter	 Henry
Robin	 Herbert
Kate	 Herfort
Simon	 Herfort
Cath	 Hillier
James	 Hogan
Grant	 Home
Ralph	 Hudson
Penelope Huisman
Serene	Hussain
Kahori	 Inoue
Kate	 Isaacs
Josephine James
Diana	 Jenkins
Judith	 Jenkins
Christine Jones
Christopher Kanewww
Nick	 Karmogiannis
Marko	 Kasalo
Orla	 Keane
Janelle	 Keenlyside
Kevin	 Kehoe
Angus	 Kench
Rebecca Ketelhohn
Lisa	 Kinghorn
Michael	Kollo
Christin	Kopplin
Steve	 Kramer
Michelle Lacey

David	 Laimeww
Ronny	 Lan
Nicola	 Lasorsa
Wai	 Lee
Zhongli	Lin
Tania	 Linehan
Dean	 Llewellyn
Fernando Lulli
Ronan	 Maguire
David	 Maisey
Ian	 Marschner
Lisa	 Martinwwww
Alfredo	 Martinez
Craig	 McCarthy
Justina	 McClean
Kylie	 Mccowen
Anthony Mitchell
Jenna	 Monk
Uuli	 Moran
Bridget	 Moroney
Jeff	 Morris
Emma Jane Morton
Henning Muller
Tanja	 Muller
Andrew	Murphy
Radj	 Naidou
Nick	 Nelson
Carol	 Ng
Rae	 Ni Corraidh
Renee	 Nowytarger
Samantha O’Brien
Andrew	O’Farrell
Mark	 Olivier
Harmony Osborne
Mark	 Osborne
Indiana	Oxlade
Maja	 Paleka
Michael	Parker
Nicola	 Parren
Shaun	 Parren
Alastair	Pennie
Dang	 Pham
Dianne	 Phillips
Patrick	 Phillips
Donna	 Pinto
Natalie	 Portes
Neasa	 Power
Megan	 Pusterla
Vivian	 Queiroz
Almir	 Queiroz Junior
Gareth	 Ratcliffe
Claire	 Reed
Nicholas Reed
Steven	 Rice
David	 Richardson
Kristi	 Riordan
Brian	 Roberts
Daniel	 Robertson
Dean	 Robinson

David	 Romero
Dylan	 Ryan
Glenn	 Sachko
Michelle Sas
Rebecca Sentance
Marcio	 Sete Araujo
Craig	 Shadbolt
Elise	 Shaw
Michael	Shea
Alan	 Shipley
Dora	 Shipley
Pauline	Shuttleworth
Courtney Statos
Van	 Stewart
Katie	 Stoner
Pam	 Sussman
Ranjeeta Tamana
Jane	 Thompson
Alison	 Totterdell
Simon	 Totterdell
Angela	 Traill
Analiese Treacy-Ruane
Scott	 Turner
Regina	 Ugarte
Karen	 Ure
Roger	 van de Zande
Pia	 Van Parys
Leonardo Vidal
Brett	 Walker
Matthew Walker
Sam	 Walling
Shani	 Walton
Stephen Walton
Doris	 Wang
David	 Watkins
Clay	 Williams
Geoff	 Williams
George	Williams
Olive	 Williams
Alison	 Wilson
Anthony Wong
Linda	 Wortel
John	 Wright
Dong	 Xia
Yuan	 Zhou

Nippers U6
Ilse Anthonissen
Finn Breure
Joe	 Clark
Aria	 Colhoun
Lea	 Creamer
Archer	 Donaldson
Isabelle	Driscoll
Eloise	 Duxbury
Hannah	Fishburn
Oliver	 Furlong
Indy	 Gerrish
Emmet	 Giffney
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Nina	 Gower
Leila	 Hart
Lucas	 Henry
Atticus	 Jenkins
Clayton	Llewellyn
Annaliese Lulli
Cooper	Magrath
Riley	 Maisey
Savannah Martin
Jessica	McNaught
Sacha	 Millaire
Evelina	Monk
Noa	 Nelson
Flynn	 Peake
Freya	 Shadbolt
Leon	 Van Parys
Oliver	 Walker
Ella	 Wilson
Jake	 Wilson
Leo	 Wooder
Sophia	 Zhang

Nippers U7
Jack	 Abbott
Amelia	 Aked
Miles	 Barriscale
Mia	 Baumann
Tahlia	 Bennetts
Travis	 Cai
Oliver	 Cape
Eduardo Cervantes
Boyu	 Chen
Jordan	 Chow
Charlotte Collinson
Jackson Conroy
Max	 Cotty
John	 Day
Leo	 Ellis
Ebony	 Fuller
Ethan	 Goldsworthy
Neo	 Grabham
Charlie	 Herfort
Eilidh	 Home
Matilda	Kane
Georgia Karmogiannis
Benjamin Kollo
Lou Ann Kopplin
Charlie	 Kramer
Eva	 Kulkarni
Mia	 Laime
Robbie	 Lan
Jack	 Linehan
Olivia	 Lorentz
Evelyn	 Lulli
Jackson Magrath
Felix	 McCarthy
Poppy	 Moschou
Isabella	Motta Bagshaw
Kiana	 O’Farrell

Oscar	 Ohalloran
Max	 Osborne
Flori	 Pennie
Aria	 Rae
Edward	Reed
Jamison Ryan
Sophie	 Sete
Dominic Shipley
Georgia	Statos
Myka	 Totterdell
Isabel	 Tremblay
Julie	 Vidal
Jonah	 Walker
Timothy	Weller
Erin	 Williams
Aaron	 Wooder

Nippers U8
Stephanie Aleksyeyenko
Emerson Ayres
Lucas	 Bell
Violet	 Benham
Isabella	Brown
Addison Burrows
Sophie	 Cawthorne
Daniel	 Chatfied
Leo	 Clark
Josephine Clarson
Samuel	Cole
Joel	 Colwell
Liam	 Creamer
Millicent Crofton
Lachlan	Cummins
Bronte	 De Laine
Jesse	 Duncan
Elias	 Elia
Camilla	Ellis
William	Fisk
Henry	 Furlong
Philippa	Gates
Eden	 Grose
Lauren	 Grose
Awa	 Harms
Ella	 Isaacs
Tristan	 Junkermann
Hayato	 Kanezaki
Isabella	Lasorsa
Jamieson Lee-Mason
Nolan	 Moroney
Olivia	 Murdoch-Smith
Olivia	 Murphy
Archie	 O’Brien
Elsie	 Olivier
Noah	 Parker
Ruby	 Phillips
Aria	 Pinto
Morgan	Pritchard
Natalie	 Rice
John	 Riordan

Alison	 Robertson
David	 Robinson
Joel	 Robinson
Cillian	 Ruane
Amelia	 Ryan
Bailey	 Shea
Ruby	 Short
Koji	 Takamura
Floris	 Van Parys
Rhett	 Williams
Levi	 Wilson
Joshua	Wortel
Nick	 Xia

Nippers U9
Noah	 Aboushabana
Mia	 Allen
Magdalena Aylwin
Evie	 Ayres
Caden	 Badstue
Jessica	Bekis
Kira	 Bennetts
Boran	 Chen
Charlie	 Conroy
Orlando	Cooke
Sofia	 Delmar
Joseph	Dowling
Thomas Drake
Mia	 Falzarano
Zach	 Gibbeson
Emma	 Greenhalgh
Jasmine Greenhalgh
Sasha	 Grishin
Amelie	 Guthrie
Zoe	 Hanson
Madeleine Hart
Mia	 Haughton
Inigo	 Jenkins
Charlie	 Kehoe
Eloise	 Kench
Levi	 Kosi
Emma	 Kramer
Zoe	 Kulkarni
Michael	Love
Alana	 Lulli
Chloe	 Magrath
Ciara	 Maguire
Ahaana	Mahale
Amairah Mahale
Harper	 Maisey
Leonel	 Martinez
Domenica Mason
Luella	 Moschou
Zac	 Nowytarger
Frank	 Ohalloran
Jessica	Osborne
Tavia	 Pham
Luca	 Pinto
Darcey	 Reed
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Hannah	Sentance
Max	 Steadman
Felix	 Stephens
Conor	 Williams
Isabella	Wilton-McWilliam

Nippers U10
Thomas Bell
Cooper	Benham
James	 Blunden
Kody	 Burrows
Maddison Cooper
Xavier	 Cotty
Thomas Crofton
Elizabeth Cronin
Libbie	 Duncan
Liam	 Giles-Jones
Georgia	Gray
Oscar	 Hart
Logan	 Home
Allen	 James
James	 Kollo
Rebecca Levett
Sophie	 Maher
Jackson McCowen
Maddox	Moran
Clara	 Moroney
Emily	 Murphy
Emma	 Nielsen
Gemma	O’Farrell
Ted	 Olivier
Sienna	 Omondi
Rory	 Pennie
Lias Edoard Pipi
Marcus	Portes
Victor	 Queiroz
Abigail	 Riordan
Madison Ryan
Michael	Sitaramayya
Lukas	 Townsin-Brant
Emma	 Weller
Grant	 Williams
Amarlie	Wilson
Chenyang Zhang

Nippers U11
Melanie	Aleksyeyenko
Hugh	 Barriscale
Kiki	 Breure
Jensen	Brownlaw
Lillie	 Buchanan Bellis
Isabel	 Churchman
Sienna	 Cole
Charlie	 Colwell
Olivia	 Cooke
Cameron Davidson
Amelia	 De Laine

Clara	 Dowling
Charlotte Furlong
Leo	 Gibbeson
Jessica	Hall
Zara	 Harrington
Eva	 Haughton
Charlotte Henry-Farrelly
Alana	 Kasalo
Olive	 Klugsberger
Sophie	 Lasorsa
Oisin	 Morris
Ben	 Naidou
Elise	 Pham
Sarah	 Rice
Charlotte Robinson
Joshua	Robinson
Beanon	Ruane
Ambra	 Serventi
Arran	 Shea
Allegra	 Shipley
Brigid	 Tompson
Josh	 Turner
Oliver	 Uherek
Sofie	 Uherek
Keet	 Van de Zande
Charlotte Walker
Joshua	Wilton-McWilliam
Xavier	 Yates

Nippers U12
Lewis	 Abbott
Orla	 Casserly
Thomas Cooper
Oliver	 Crofton
Monet	 Delmar
Samantha Dutton
Sophie	 Giles-Jones
Eliza	 Gray
Sienna	 Hogan
Mabel	 James
Peregrine Keenlyside
Dara	 Kehoe
Aisha	 Kench
Natasha Martinez
Isaac	 Moran
Kaea	 Phillips
Joshua	Portes
Daisy	 Ratcliffe
Katherine Riordan
Taylor	 Roberts
Sydney	Sachko
Arthur	 Sete
Daniel	 Unicomb
Anna	 Wild
Harry	 Wilde
Brendan Williams
Dann	 Wilson
Dean	 Wright

Nippers U13
Jessica	Allen
Cillian	 Barriscale
Jack	 Binns
Matilda	Binns
Francesca Brady
Isabelle	Breure
Clara	 Brocklehurst
Isabella	Cronin
Charlotte Faulk
Neneh	 Hanson
Geoffrey Herbert
Thomas Hudson
Sam	 Isaacs
Andrew	Kinghorn
Zoe	 Maher
Emmett	Mariotti
Faye	 McCloskey
Emilie	 Morris
Sophia	 Nunn
Alec	 Parren
Eva	 Tompson
Oskar	 Townsin-Brant
Lou	 Van de Zande

Nippers U14
Ignacio Aylwin
Annabel Filmer
Aidan Ford
Dylan Ford
Lexie Landrak
Greer Mason (JCC)
Lukas Muller
Casey Shea
Xavier Small
Blake Wilson (JCC)
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Year	 Event	 Names
1999-2000	 50-54 Beach Sprint	 P Crombie
1999-2000	 130+ Beach Relay Team	 P Crombie, P Gilmore, C Kearney

Australian Champions
Year	 Event	 Names
1908-09	 Premiers (R & R)	 R McKelvey, C Bell, G Millar, J Vernon, O Merrett, LV Hind, A Currie
1909-10	 Premiers (R & R)	 A Currie, J Vernon, O Merrett, L Hind, G Millar, H Watson, C Bell
1910-11	 Premiers (R & R)	 A Currie, J Vernon, O Merrett, L Hind, G Millar, H Watson, C Bell
1919-20	 Premiers (R & R)	 L Hind, A Davis, A Hodge, W Keith, H Middleton, E Whitehead
	 Open Belt	 F Lough
1920-21	 Premiers (R & R)	 L Hind, H Evans, A Davis, N Lister, E Whitehead, H Middleton
	 Open Boat	 E Wigney, F Dargan, G Moat, A Stewart, A Thorn
	 Beach Sprint	 J Waterer
1921-22	 Open Boat	 H Evans, F Dargan, G Moat, A Stewart, A Thorn
	 Open Surf	 AL Davis
	 Resuscitation	 R Kidman, G Riddington
1922-23	 Junior Surf	 R Nicholls
1923-24	 Junior Surf	 D Thompson
	 Open Boat	 H Evans, E Saunders, P Mazlin, O Stephenson, F Stewart
	 Beach Sprint	 J Waterer
	 Beach Relay	 J Waterer, H Gorfin, C Whitehead, E Whitehead
1925-26	 Open Boat	 H Evans, S Kelly, G Moat, P Mazlin, O Stephenson
	 Junior Boat	 S Kelly, A Wise, E Ireland, H Morgan, L Waterer
1926-27	 Premiers (R & R)	 G Bland, D Thompson, O Ryan, G Boulton, D Riddington, E Whitehead
	 Open Boat	 H Evans, S Kelly, P Mazelin, G Moat, F Bridges
1928-29	 Open Boat	 H Evans, S Kelly, G Moat, F Bridges, F Vaughan
1929-30	 Open Boat	 H Evans, S Kelly, P Mazlin, J Milne, M Vaughan
	 Beach Sprint	 R Conn
1930-31	 Beach Relay	 R Conn, N Walters, J Carter, J Gosson
1932-33	 Beach Relay	 D Souter, G Souter, J Carter, J Megson
1933-34	 Beach Relay	 D Souter, G Souter, J Carter, R Geary
1938-39	 Premiers (R & R)	 E Morgan, S Paton, A Owen, W Furey, R Mullumby, B Lilley, A Durrell, G Souter
1940-41	 Junior Belt	 IK Kennington
1945-46	 Junior R & R	 A Coore, B Smith, D Page, J Ashley, D Stewart, G Anderson, D Anderson
	 Junior Teams	 J Ashley, A Coore, B Smith, B Hawkeswood
	 Junior Surf	 J Ashley
	 Junior Belt	 A Coore

1963-64	 Junior R & R	 A Kennington, G Day, A Simon, G Murcutt, G Maloney, E Wise,  
		  P Tocchini, I Byrne, T O’Donnell
1986-87	 Junior Flags	 G Monckton
	 Junior Relay	 G Monckton, A O’Dwyer, A Pettit, D Nable, P Hogg
1989-90	 Open Boat	 R Burgess, D O’Shannassy, D Hoy, A Watt, A Hayward
2005-06	 u19 Female Beach Sprint	 Charlotte Van Veenendaal
2005-06	 u19 Female Beach Relay	 Charlotte Van Veenendaal, Erin Lee, Annabelle Ewen, Alice Wilson
2009-10	 Masters 40-44 2km Run	 Kevin Ferry
2013-14	 u17 Female Champion Lifesaver	 Courtney Sloan
2013-14	 Open First Aid Team	 Melissa Clark, Joseph Mastrangelo III
2015-16	 u19 Female Champion Lifesaver	 Courtney Sloan

World Champions



List of Executives 1907 - 1956

Season President Secretary Treasurer Captain Chief Instructor

07-08 R Arthur MLA WH Commins WJ Bland CD Patterson GH Williams

08-09 R Arthur MLA SAE Wigney WG Fisher CD Patterson HD Spyer
09-10 EW Quirk EMV Shemwell HF Watson CD Patterson A Neale
10-11 EW Quirk EMV Shemwell KV Holmes CD Patterson OGH Merrett
11-12 CD Patterson EMV Shemwell KV Holmes OGH Merrett
12-13 CD Patterson JB Pym KV Holmes OGH Merrett
13-14 CD Patterson JB Pym KV Holmes OGH Merrett OGH Merrett
14-15 EMV Shemwell HH Donkin RN Beale OGH Merrett OGH Merrett
15-16 Col DH Love EH Goulding N Thomson OGH Merrett
16-17 Col DH Love EH Goulding JW Roberts OGH Merrett
17-18 Col DH Love WH Walker JW Roberts OGH Merrett JJ Waterer
18-19 Col DH Love WH Walker JW Roberts LV Hind JJ Waterer
19-20 Col DH Love RC Middleton RJ Hall LV Hind JJ Waterer
20-21 Col DH Love RC Middleton JJ Waterer LV Hind
21-22 Col DH Love LA Ellison JJ Waterer CW Whitehead EM Whitehead
22-23 Col DH Love LA Ellison JJ Waterer CW Whitehead EM Whitehead
23-24 Col DH Love LA Ellison JJ Waterer CW Whitehead FH Dargan
24-25 Col DH Love LA Ellison JJ Waterer CW Whitehead FH Dargan
25-26 WH Allison LA Ellison JJ Waterer ED Morton FH Dargan
26-27 WH Allison LA Ellison JJ Waterer ED Morton FH Dargan
27-28 WH Allison LA Ellison JJ Waterer ED Morton FH Dargan
28-29 WH Allison LA Ellison JJ Waterer G Bland FH Dargan
29-30 WH Allison LA Ellison JJ Waterer G Bland FH Dargan
30-31 WH Allison AH Owen AC Ellison CW Whitehead GR Webb
31-32 CW Whitehead AH Owen AC Ellison GL Bolton EW Whitehead
32-33 CW Whitehead AV Robison VH Christie GL Bolton NB Bland
33-34 CW Whitehead AV Robison VH Christie DG Soutar SG Berthold
34-35 FH Dargan AV Robison VH Christie DG Soutar SG Berthold
35-36 FH Dargan AV Robison GR Soutar DG Soutar SG Berthold
36-37 FH Dargan AV Robison HM Richards DG Soutar SG Berthold
37-38 FH Dargan AV Robison HM Richards DH Richardson WS Green
38-39 DG Soutar SAR Tuck SJ Law DH Richardson RN Crook
39-40 DG Soutar DK Robinson W Brown DH Richardson RN Crook
40-41 DG Soutar AV Robison R Kennington JR Greary G Hatten
41-42 RJ Walden DJ McGrath SAR Tuck JR Geary G Hatten
42-43 RJ Walden DJ McGrath SAR Tuck JL Jenkins WS Green
43-44 RJ Walden DJ McGrath SAR Tuck AE Fitzgerald WS Green
44-45 RJ Walden JS Gibbons GR Soutar AE Fitzgerald WS Green
45-46 RJ Walden JS Gibbons GR Soutar AE Fitzgerald G Kemp
46-47 JR Geary JS Gibbons NW Higham B McLoughlan FO Baker
47-48 JR Geary CK Paton NW Higham EG Morgan FO Baker/G Terry
48-49 JR Geary CK Paton NW Higham EG Morgan G Terry
49-50 JR Geary CK Paton WC Davidson EG Morgan G Terry
50-51 RN Crook CK Paton R Kennington N Purcell O Willis
51-52 RN Crook CK Paton R Kennington N Purcell G Terry
52-53 JR Geary WA Furey H Rodgers R Ferris G Terry
53-54 JR Geary SG Robinson H Rodgers A Fitzgerald B Terry
54-55 SG Robsinson R Woodley J Allen A Fitzgerald J McCabe
55-56 AE Fitzgerald NR Purcell DT Dunton G McConnell R Tighe



List of Executives 1956 - 2000
Season President Secretary Treasurer Captain Chief Instructor
56-57 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Kennington G McConnell G Terry
57-58 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Kennington G Terry J Wilson
58-59 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Kennington G Terry C Anderson
59-60 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Kennington J Sutherland M Goodfellow
60-61 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Kennington J Sutherland M Goodfellow
61-62 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Kennington J Sutherland M Goodfellow
62-63 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Rodgers J Sutherland M Goodfellow

63-64 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Rodgers J Sutherland M Goodfellow
64-65 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland P Day J Sutherland M Goodfellow
65-66 S Tocchini W Sutherland P Day J Sutherland M Goodfellow
66-67 S Tocchini/ W Sutherland/P Day J Sutherland M Goodfellow W Sutherland/ 

A Kwanton
67-68 NW Kelley G Kinging P Day K Day W Miles
68-69 J Sutherland G Kinging P Day K Day M Goodfellow
69-70 M Goodfellow G Kinging P Day C Barrow T Hanley
70-71 PA Day G Kinging D Ramsland R Higgins A Richardson
71-72 PA Day D Ramsland P Barnes M Simmons N Daniels
72-73 PA Day W Miles T Lane M Simmons N Daniels
73-74 PA Day W Miles/P Day T Lane M Simmons
74-75 PA Day M Turner D Kaye P McFadyen A McCarroll
75-76 PA Day M Turner/P Day A Shaw A McCarroll A McCarroll
76-77 PA Day T Glenn A Shaw A McCarroll M Turner
77-78 A McCarroll M Turner N Hunt C Fry T O’Donnell
78-79 A McCarroll R Buit N Hunt C Fry J Killick
79-80 A McCarroll M Pryke P Furnel/ 

M Gamlin
D Gordon J Killick

80-81 A McCarroll F Ashworth M Gamlin D Gordon J Killick
81-82 A McCarroll F Ashworth M Gamlin B Walker D Gordon
82-83 A McCarroll F Ashworth M Gamlin B Walker/J Killick D Gordon
83-84 A McCarroll G Evans P Nass B Burrows D Gordon
84-85 A McCarroll R Ingram P Nass B Burrows G O’Sullivan
85-86 A McCarroll R Ingram P Nass B Burrows G O’Sullivan/ 

D Gordon
86-87 A McCarroll C Coape-Smith/ 

R Fountain
G Evans P Duggan J Killick

87-88 A McCarroll R Fountain G Evans/ 
D Kaye

P Hull D Gordon

88-89 A McCarroll / B Walker T Miller D Kaye D O’Shannassy P Hull
89-90 B Walker T O’Donnell D Kaye D O’Shannassy P Hull
90-91 B Walker B Burrows D Kaye G O’Sullivan P Hull
91-92 B Walker/B Burrows B Burrows/I Donald A McCarroll G O’Sullivan / P 

Hull
92-93 B Burrows I Donald A McCarroll C Tyrrell P Hull
93-94 B Burrows I Donald A McCarroll C Tyrrell P Hull
94-95 B Burrows I Donald T Moore S Fry P Hull
95-96 B Burrows D O’Shannassy M Murphy P Hull I Donald
96-97 B Burrows D O’Shannassy M Murphy P Hull I Donald
97-98 B Burrows D O’Shannassy M Murphy P Hull I Donald
98-99 D O’Shannassy J Killick/D O’Shannassy T Howard J Colwell /  

G O’Sullivan
99-00 S Grose T Prendergast/ T Howard J Colwell G O’Sullivan D O’Shannassy



List of Executives 2000 - 2020

Season President Secretary Treasurer Captain Chief Instructor
00-01 I Byrne D O’Shannassy T Howard J Vickery G O’Sullivan

01-02 S Grose KE Abraham T Howard J Vickery G O’Sullivan

02-03 S Grose KE Abraham T Howard H Matheson G O’Sullivan

03-04 S Grose KE Abraham T Howard J Latta G O’Sullivan

04-05 S Grose KE Abraham T Howard J Colwell H Matheson

05-06 S Grose KE Abraham T Howard J Colwell H Matheson 

06-07 SA Fry KE Abraham G Cooper J Colwell A Traugott 

07-08 SA Fry L Cooper G Cooper J Colwell A Traugott / KE Abraham 
 

08-09 D O’Shannassy L Cooper K Martin S Job KE Abraham 

09-10 D O’Shannassy L Cooper G Cooper S Job KE Abraham

10-11 D O’Shannassy T Hare-Boyd G Cooper S Job F Traugott

11-12 G O’Sullivan L Cooper G Cooper T Rankine F Traugott

12-13 G O’Sullivan L Cooper G Cooper T Rankine T Hare-Boyd

13-14 T Hare-Boyd L Cooper P Woolcott T Rankine R Chapman

14-15 T Hare-Boyd L Cooper G Cooper R Chapman F Traugott

15-16 F Traugott C Stewart K Ryder R Chapman J Greer

16-17 F Traugott C Stewart T Falzarano R Chapman K Jenkins

17-18 F Traugott C Stewart T Falzarano D Hillier K Jenkins

18-19 F Traugott C Stewart T Falzarano D Hillier K Jenkins

19-20 C Stewart C Hillier T Falzarano D Hillier Trae Hare-Boyd
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